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Important legal information SAKRET-

* This Company Description has been drawn up by the Management Board of AS Sakret Holdings (“Sakret”, hereinafter also the “Company” or the “Issuer”)
and made public solely for the purposes of admission to trading of the Company’s Notes on the multilateral trading facility (an alternative market) First
North operated by the NASDAQ Riga and may not be used for any other purposes.

» This Company Description or any information contained herein does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase any securities in
any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. Each violation
of such restrictions may constitute a violation of applicable securities laws of such countries.

* This Company Description is drawn up based on information which was valid as of 25 February 2020.
* The Notes that are mentioned in this Company Description have their own Terms, which should be read and considered separately.

* The statements of fact, information, opinions and estimates contained in this Company Description have been obtained, compiled or arrived at by AS «Sakret
Holdings», its founders and its associated companies from sources believed to be reliable and in good faith, but no representation or warranty expressed or
implied is made as to their accuracy, completeness or correctness. In particular any numbers, valuations and schedules contained in this document are
preliminary and are for discussion purposes only.

* The information contained in this document is published for the assistance of recipients but is not to be relied upon as authoritative or taken in substitution
for the exercise of judgement by any recipient and AS «Sakret Holdings», its founders and its associated companies accept no liability whatsoever for any
direct or consequential loss arising from the use of this document or its contents.

» Expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice. AS «Sakret Holdings», its founders and its associated companies and/or their officers,
directors or employees may own or have positions in any securities or investments mentioned herein, and may from time to time add to or dispose of any
such securities or investments.

* This document should not be used for advertising, broadcast or as product endorsement purposes or exploit the information available in this document to
any third parties in any manner without the written consent of AS «Sakret Holdings».

* Investing into debt securities involves risks. While every care has been taken to ensure that this Company Description presents a fair and complete overview
of the risks related to the Issuer; the operations of the Issuer and its subsidiaries, and to the Notes, the value of any investment in the Notes may be adversely
affected by circumstances that are either not evident at the date hereof or not reflected in the Company Description.




Management Board Statement SARRET-

Hereby We, members of the board of AS «Sakret Holdings», Maris Kelpis, Juris Grinvalds, Andis Ziedonis
certify that, by paying sufficient attention to this purpose, the information included in the Company
Description and in the Terms of the Notes is true, in accordance with the facts, and no information which
may affect its meaning is concealed therein.

The Company Description contains references to the Terms of the Notes Issue dated as of 8 August 2019.
Investor must read and consider the specified section of the Terms of the Notes Issue. The latest financial
data is included in this Company Description, for additional information please see financial reports
attached to this document.

Maris Kelpis Juris Grinvalds Andis Ziedonis
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board Member of the Board




Company history

Sakret SIA is registered
and the Sakret licence for
operating in Baltic
markets is received

opened

Sakret Plus starts its
operations and Sakret
office in Estonia is

Estonia is

market

Building of the factory in
finalized
Sakret enters the Finnish

and

The largest dry mixes
production factory in the
Baltics starts its operations in

Kédainiai, Lithuania

Office in Lithuania is
opened, option to operate
in Finland and Leningrad
oblast (vicinity of St.
Petersburg)

Dry production factory is built in Riga
and starts its operations

A new business plan and
strategy is developed for
the business in difficulties

World and Latvia is hit by
the financial crisis, having
a significant impact on the
construction market and
Sakret

Loan refinancing with DNB Bank

Shareholders invested
additional capital and
successfully refinanced
existing long-term loan

After unfavorable market
conditions recovery begins
supported by the strong
2018 results

Sakret EBITDA exceeds €2.3m
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Business overview

1)
2)
3)

Founded in 2003, Sakret is a Latvia-based leading manufacturer of
ready-mixed dry mortars.

Main products include masonry and repair mortars, ETICS;
concrete and plasters.

Products are distributed in Latvia, Lithuania, Estonia and Finland.

The company has more than 25% market share in the Baltics with
a leading position in it's key market segments.

Total production capacity of Sakret plants is 500k tonnes per year,
located in three countries, 150k in Estonia, 100k in Latvia and
250k in Lithuania.

The company operates under the global Sakret license which was
founded in 1966 by American and German entrepreneurs.

Sakret holds exclusive distribution rights for the Baltic states and
Finland where it currently operates, along with Belarus, Ukraine
and Volga Federal district in Russia, which are not operational yet.

The company has a leading position in profit margins compared to
other Sakret franchises in EU.

Unaudited
Includes one time income from debt value adjustment in the amount of 8 494 ths. EUR
External thermal insulations component systems.

KEY FINANCIALS

EUR '000

Revenue
growth %
Gross profit
margin %
EBITDA
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21,870
2.8%
6,005
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10,1552
46.4%
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37.8%

Coatings




Own product breakdown SAKRET-
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Production plants

YEAR OF CONSTRUCTION
MAXIMUM CAPACITY

PRODUCTION OF LIQUID MIXTURES
PRODUCTION UNDER ONE ROOF

STORAGE FACILITIES

RIGA
2004
100,000 TONNES PER YEAR
&
®
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Organizational structure

SUPERVISORY BOARD

ANDRISVANAGS | VALERIJALIEGE | ARTIS GRINBERGS

UAB Sakret LT Director

ALEKSANDRAS TOROPCINAS

MANAGEMENT BOARD

MARIS KELPIS | JURIS GRINVALDS | ANDIS ZIEDONIS

Sakret OU Director

KASPARS PACEVICS

Management &
Administration

Note: At the end of 2019 Sakret had 140 employees

Quality control &

Production
Development

Planning & Accounting
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SAKRET~
Management

MARIS KELPIS

Founder, Chairman of the Management Board

Maris is the founder of Sakret and the main visionary. He is the main decision maker, but has a strong belief in his management team and
employees. He has held a controlling stake in Sakret since the foundation of the company and still follows the operations on a daily basis.

JURIS GRINVALDS

Chief Commercial Officer

From 1996 to 2003, worked in the Danish paint company SKALFLEX. Joined Sakret in early beginning of 2003 as Sales Director. Lead the
construction project of the largest dry mixing plant in the Baltic states. Plant in Kédainiai in Lithuania was opened in 2008. Currently
coordinates Sakret sales in the Baltics and Scandinavian countries, as well as is the Director of Sakret Plus. Juris graduated from the
Faculty of Civil Engineering of Latvia University of Agriculture. Currently serves as Board Member of Association of Building Materials
Manufacturers.

ANDIS ZIEDONIS

Chief Financial Officer

Andis has more than 20 year experience as CFO. He joined Sakret in 2006 after 8 years in one of the largest press publishing house in the
Baltics, where he started as an Economist and was promoted to Chief Economist and CEO. He also has experience in banks. Andis follows
every number in Sakret books and is responsible identifying financial efficiencies, as well as for putting together the future financial
plan. He holds a combined BSc in Engineering and Economics from Riga Technical University.




. SAKRET~
Supervisory board

ANDRIS VANAGS

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Andris has spent long years working for construction material companies producing cement, concrete and other products. Prior
experience include client service manager at AS Broceéni (currently Schwenk) and project manager at AS Brocénu Siferis. Andris holds a
BSc in chemical technology , MSc in silicate and high-temperature materials chemistry and technology from Riga Technical University
and PhD in management science in the sub-branch of business management from Business University Turiba. He acted as a Special
Advisor to the former Prime Minister of Latvia, Maris Kucinskis, and is a Member of the Counsellors Convention of RTU and Member of
the Board of Latvian Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

VALERIJA LIEGE

Member of the Supervisory Board

With more than 15 years’ experience in corporate finance and change management, Valérija has led top Baltic companies through
complex turnarounds, implementing operational and financial restructurings. She is Partner at Oaklins Latvia and has managed various
M&A and capital raising projects and advised top regional banks and private equity houses. Valérija is an Executive Committee member
of Oaklins International as well as a supervisory council member of International School of Riga and Lido AS. Valérija holds an MSc in
Consulting and Coaching for Change (with distinction) from Oxford /HEC Paris, a BSc in Economics and Business Administration from
the Stockholm School of Economics in Riga and is a CFA charter holder

ARTIS GRINBERGS

Member of the Supervisory Board

Artis Grinbergs served as an economic adviser to two prime ministers of the republic of Latvia. Previously he gained experience in
manufacturing industrial building materials and participated in an apprenticeship program on global financial systems and economic
development trends. Artis holds a BSc degree in Business and Economics from University of Latvia.

10



Shareholder structure

ligvars Bilinskis

Maris Kelpis

Other <5%

SIA Sakret Plus

SIA Sakret

Parvaldibas Sistémas SIA

AS Sakret Holdings

UAB Sakret LT

Sakret OU

SAKRET-
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Units

ths. m2

. SAKRET-
Market overview (1)
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» Last 3 quarters of 2019 have seen a steady pickup in new building permits across all markets comparing to the same period in 2018.

* Most notable growth was in Lithuanian residential building permits +22.5% and Latvian non-residential building permits +20%.

Source: Central Statistical Bureau of Latvia, Statistics Lithuania, Statistics Estonia
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Market overview (2)
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M Single-family buildings Multi-storey buildings M Single-family buildings Multi-storey buildings

All residential buildings

Most of the residential buildings in the Baltics have been built during USSR with low energy efficiency standards and require maintenance.

SAKRET-

The current market is not renewing the buildings at their rate of depreciation thus creating a shortage of new housing stock and demand for renovation services.

Favorable bank financing, low interest rates, greater household purchasing power and government support programs for first home buyers accelerate demand for

new houses.

These factors indicate of the expected residential construction growth, including heat insulation works on the outdated and energy inefficient buildings.

Source: Forecon, June 2017
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Competition

* Raw materials - a key cost component and their quality / specifics determine the recipe of the end
product, its quality and margin. A strategic location of the plant is important in order to be located in
close proximity to the suppliers.

* Production capacity - development of a new factory requires significant capital inflow, which often
can reach the level of expected revenues over several years. However, available capacity ensures the
ability to produce a wide range of products as well as capitalize on market growth;

* Product development & range - includes innovative solutions and adaptations of products (recipes)
to specific developing and local market needs.

* Economies of scale - substantial capital investment and operating costs of the plant require high
revenues in order to reach a break-even point.

KEY PLAYERS

[ISAKRET [NAUF (2l

@ Gyproc 1sover fibo "weber

SAKRET-
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PRODUCT PRODUCTION
DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY
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CAPAROL
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Major clients
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SAKRET-
Use of proceeds

* Historically, Sakret made expansion investments co-financed Transaction structure
by Luminor (then DNB bank), including loans for
construction of the factories in Lithuania (total investment EUR'000 pre-transaction post-transaction
9.50m EUR) and Estonia (total investment 6.70m EUR). _
Long-term loan from Luminor bank 15,591 -
* As a result of the financial crisis of 2008-2009, Sakret’s core Long-term loan from BlueOrange bank - 4,000
rr;?rketds contracted and return on the loans was negatively Bonds . 3,000
attected. Long-term liabilities with financial institutions 15,591 7,000
 In 2013, a restructuring was done, forming a holding Credit-line limit from Luminor bank 1,000 -
structure and renegotiating the repayment schedule, Sakret Factoring limit from Luminor bank 1,000 -
returned to positive cash flow. Credit-line limit from BlueOrange bank - 2,000
« At the end of 2017, two Scandinavian banks - DNB and Factoring limit from BlueOrange bank - 1,700
Nordea, decided to merge their Baltic operations. Luminor Short-term liabilities with financial institutions 2,000 3,700
bank was created as a result. In 2018, the newly formed bank
was sold to USA-based investment fund Blackstone.
* In 2018 Luminor bank revaluated its existing strategy. As a Achieving positive equi
result, Luminor has decided to accept refinancing of Sakret gpP quity EUR'000 2018 2019
loan at a discount due to the length of the repayment e Eieaet & rera bl syl _
sch_edule and the internal procedures that do not allow to 1.015m EUR in share capital. Due to Share capital 35 1,050
write-off part of the loan. the discount granted by Luminor Reorganisation reserve (8,492) (8,492)
; . bank, the equity has increased.
* In 2019 proceeds from the bond issue were used to refinance ’ cquity Oth 26 26
Luminor liabilities. Toget.her. with the .shareholde:-rs Crreserves
contribution, the consolidated equity Retained earnings 259 8,498
is now positive, allowing Sakret to .
participate in several grant and Minority interest 194 232

energy-efficiency increase programs.




Future growth strategy

Concrete, masonry and basic plasters - key product groups that take up most of the
Sakret’s revenue share as well as market share in the key geographies. The market is
expected to be fairly flat, however, it is key to retain the existing market share in order
to remain the most competitive player.

Given that manufacturing of building materials implies significant fixed costs (i.e.
running of the factories), retention of revenues is the key driver behind margin
sustainability - once the breakeven point has been reached, EBITDA growth
accelerates significantly through any additional production.

Growth strategy is oriented towards developing products that supplement the
existing product line such as floor waterproofing and facade insulation systems.
Another development route includes products with simpler manufacturing process
and lower raw material requirement, thus allowing to increase production volumes.

Insulation systems & accessories - a quickly growing market, given the aged
residential building capital in the Baltics. Sakret is best positioned to capitalize on this
growth, given its unique product portfolio and offering (i.e. ability to offer the ‘full
package’ to its clients when it comes to insulation, including all of the necessary
accessories);

Flooring, glues and other segments - smaller segments of Sakret that are not top
priority, however, pose additional growth opportunities in future, in case any of the
‘key’ segments would start to lag.

Significant upside is available for Sakret, supported by both unused production
capacity, market potential overseas and potential to relocate the existing Latvian
factory next to a sand quarry.

SALES INCREASE

ADDITIONAL
OPPORTUNITIES

AVAILABLE
PRODUCTION
CAPACITY

" BUSINESS
PLAN

TOP LINE

SAKRET-
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. . SAKRETe
Financial forecast

REVENUE AND GROWTH FORECAST

* Over the next two years, Sakret is expected to record stable 30000 12.0%
revenue CAGR of c¢.2.2%, reaching almost € 23.4 m in revenues 21870 22292 22820 23362
by the end of 2022. 22500 21266 9.0%
19299
* While the largest markets (concrete, basic plasters, masonry) z
are expected to stagnate during this period, this will be offset by o« 15000 6.0%
strong growth in heat insulation as well as further expansion in o
other higher priced markets, such as value added plasters. 2500 3 0%
» Sakret is continuously in discussions with its clients to increase
the market price and is expecting to record sustainable growth 0 0.0%
in costs. 2017 2018 2019 2020F 2021F 2022F
» It is conservatively expected that the gross profit margin will Revenue growth %
stabilize at 2019 level over the coming three years due to
stagnation of the main product line, which will be compensated GROSS PROFIT FORECAST
by introducing higher margin products. o0 27.5% 27.5% 27.5% 27.5% -
y 25.4%
6250 24% 25%
5000
= 20%
W 3750
< 15%
2500
1250 10%
- 5%
2017 2018 2019 2020F 2021F 2022F
Gross profit Gross margin %
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. . SAKRETe
Financial statements

EUR '000 2016A 2017A 2018A 2019A! EUR '000 2016A 2017A 2018A 2019A!
Revenue of own production 16,152 17,639 19,611 20,622 Intangible assets 317 412 446 464
growth, % -7.8% 9.2% 11.2% 5.2% Fixed assets 12,231 11,424 10,628 9,867
Revenue from sales of cement 587 555 552 533 Long-term financial assets 14 14 34 -
Revenue from sales of accesories 1,477 1,651 1,816 1,530 Total long-term assets 12,562 11,850 11,108 10,331
Other revenue 466 648 620 564 Inventory 2,515 2,292 2,287 2,140
Discounts given (1,037) (1,195) (1,333) (1,379) Accounts receivable 2,182 2,730 2,951 2,340
Revenue 17,648 19,299 21,266 21,870 Cash and cash equivalents 398 306 342 710
growth, % -7.8% 9.4% 10.2% 2.8% Total short-term assets 5,094 5,328 5,580 5,190
Gross Profit 4,427 4,649 5,393 6,005 TOTAL ASSETS 17,656 17,178 16,688 15,521
margin, % 25.1% 24.1% 25.4% 27.5%
Sales costs (2,545) (2,765) (2,800)  (2,900) TOTAL EQUITY (8,125) (8,345) (7,978) 1,314
Administration costs (982) (1,049) (1,470) (2,239) Long-term liabilities to financial institutions 17,341 16,641 - 2,200
Other income (expense) 83 (64) (54) 8,427 Long-term liabilities to related parties 768 758 644 575
EBITDA 2,061 1,798 1,971 10,1552 Other long-term liabilities 167 167 167 3,167
margin, % 11.7% 9.3% 9.3% 46.4% Long-term liabilities 18,276 17,566 811 5,942
Depreciation and amortisation (1,077) (1,028) (902) (862) Short-term liabilities to financial institutions 3,342 2,458 18,575 3,814
Interest income (expense) (878) (977) (653) (965) Short-term liabilities to related parties 625 422 469 258
Profit before tax 106 (205) 417 8,329 Accounts payable 1,957 3,006 2,977 2,747
margin, % 0.6% -1.1% 2.0% 38.1% Other short-term liabilities 1,580 2,072 1,834 1,446
Net Profit 26 (221) 367 8,277 Short-term liabilities 7,505 7,958 23,855 8,265
margin, % 0.2% -1.1% 1.7% 37.8% TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,781 25,523 24,666 14,207
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,656 17,178 16,688 15,521

1)  Unaudited
2)  Includes one time income from debt value adjustment in the amount of 8 494 ths. EUR 19



SAKRETe
Issue terms

ISSUER AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
SECURITY TYPE Secured Notes
ISIN LvV0000870038
ISSUE SIZE EUR 3,790,000
TOTAL NUMBER OF NOTES 3790

NOMINAL VALUE EUR 1,000
CURRENCY EUR

ANNUAL INTEREST RATE 9%

COUPON FREQUENCY Quarterly

DAY COUNT CONVENTION European 30/360
FIRST SETTLEMENT DAY 30.08.2019
MATURITY DATE 30.08.2024
REPAYMENT SCHEDULE Quarterly

CALL OPTION (EARLY REDEMPTION) The Issuer can carry out full early redemption (call option), on 30 August 2021 by paying 90% for the Nominal amount, or on 30
August 2022 by paying 95% for the nominal amount or on 30 August 2023 by paying 100% for the Nominal amount. If the Issuer takes
decision on the early redemption of Notes, the Issuer shall notify Noteholders at least 20 (twenty) Business Days prior to the
redemption date of Notes.

Each Noteholder has a right to demand full early redemption (put option) on 30 August 2023 at 90% for the Nominal amount. In order
to exercise the put option the Noteholders have to submit an application to the Issuer or to its appointed agent not later than 40
PUT OPTION (EARLY REDEMPTION) (forty) Business Days prior the put option date.

ADMISSION TO TRADEING First North Nasdaq Riga

ARRANGER BlueOrange Bank AS

CERTIFIED ADVISER BlueOrange Bank AS

PAYING AGENT Nasdaq CSD SE

USE OF PROCEEDS Funds that are raised from Notes issue were used in refinancing of current loan liabilities of the Issuer and its subsidiaries.

Note: For full overview please refer to the Terms of the Notes



SAKRET~
Covenants (1)

From the Issue Date of Notes to the date of repayment thereof, the Issuer and its subsidiary companies (if any) shall undertake the following:
The Issuer and its subsidiaries shall continue business operations in the production of dry mixes and ready-made liquid mixes;

* Not to change the control of the Issuer (not to sell more than 50% of shares of the Issuer or its ultimate holding company);

* Notto commence Issuer’s liquidation and not to reduce the equity capital;

* Any transactions with Related Persons shall be at market prices;

* In case of investment larger than EUR 100,000 the Issuer or its subsidiaries may invest in share capital of other companies only if the participation share is at least
51% and the Issuer or its subsidiaries retains full control of a company;

* Not to sell, present, change, rent, invest, or otherwise transfer into utilization the right to use the trademarks owned or otherwise utilized by the Issuer and/or its
subsidiary companies, except if trademarks are sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into utilization to the Issuer’s subsidiary
company, its managing company, or any companies dependent on the managing company, other enterprises or companies which have directly or indirectly
acquired participation in the equity capital of the Issuer or in which the Issuer has acquired direct or indirect participation (if any), or except if trademarks are
sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into utilization to be used outside Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania;

* Notto pay out dividends, if only audited consolidated Net Debt/Equity indicator is below 3.5 and if such dividend payout is allowed by other credit agreements;

* To maintain consolidated DSCR (profit before interest payments, tax payments, depreciation and amortization calculation against all interest, coupon and principal
payments) at least 1.1%;

* To maintain both consolidated Net Debt/Equity (total interest bearing liabilities minus cash against equity) and Net Debt/EBITDA (total interest bearing liabilities
minus cash against profit before interest payments, tax payments, depreciation and amortization calculation) indicators not exceeding:
* 5.0%,as0f31.12.2019
* 4.5,as0f31.12.2020
* 4.0,as0f31.12.2021
* 3.5,as0f31.12.2022

Lfor DSCR, Net Debt/Equity and Net Debt/EBITDA calculations as of 31.12.2019, EBITDA and Equity will be adjusted to one-off refinancing expenses

21



Covenants (2)

* From the Issue Date, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per Latvian accounting standards within 2 months after the
reporting period;

 Starting from 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per International Financial Reporting Standards within
2 months after the reporting period;

* Until 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International Financial Reporting Standards for the year 2019
audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte, PwC or KPMG). The respective auditor’s opinion shall be unqualified;

 Starting from 01.01.2021, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International Financial Reporting Standards within 4
months after the reporting period audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte, PwC or KPMG). The respective auditor’s opinions shall be unqualified;

* Proof of compliance with the financial covenants to be included in every audited consolidated annual report.

Note: The slide presents a short and fractional summary of certain sections of the Terms of the Notes issue. For full overview please refer to the Terms of the Notes

SAKRET-
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Investor rights

Any Noteholder has the right to receive Coupon and Nominal payments in accordance with the Section 4.2.7. “Coupon payments” and 4.2.8. “Procedure of Notes
repayment”, as well as exercise other rights fixed in the Terms of the Issue and legislation of the Republic of Latvia.

Collateral
* The Notes are secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agent Agreement executed between the Issuer and the Collateral Agent and
the Collateral Agreements executed between the Collateral Agent and Sakret Group companies.

* Ranking of the Collaterals securing the Secured Obligations is in detail described in Annex 5 to the Terms of the Issue.

Restrictions on free circulation of the Notes

* The Notes are freely transferable securities and can be pledged. However, the Notes cannot be offered, sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or
jurisdictions or otherwise in such circumstances in which it would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under the laws of the Republic of
Latvia and the United States of America.

The Issuer is in default if at least one of the following occurs:

* The Issuer has failed to make a Coupon payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days following the planned payment date;

* The Issuer has failed to make a Nominal value payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days following the planned payment date;

* The Issuer has violated the conditions of the Section 5.5. “Covenants” of the Terms of the Notes;

* The Issuer has failed to service other liabilities in the amount of over EUR 100,000 for more than 5 (five) Business Days;

* Insolvency proceedings have been initiated against the Issuer;

* The Issuer has submitted an application for liquidation in the relevant state authorities in Latvia.

Note: The slide presents a short and fractional summary of certain sections of the Terms of the Notes issue. For full overview please refer to the Terms of the Notes

SAKRET-
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Risk factors related to the Issuer (1)

Changes in regulatory
enactments

Macroeconomics risk

Construction industry
risk

Competition risk

Production risk

Relations with key
customers

Credit risk of clients

Financial risk

Refinancing risk

The Issuer carries out its production activity in Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania and most of the risks, which affect it, are related to the general economic situation in all three Baltic countries and regulatory
enactments adopted by each country. The Issuer is headquartered in Latvia and has manufacturing plants in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia via local subsidiaries, thus every subsidiary operates under the
laws of the respective country and any significant changes in existing regulatory enactments or implementation of new regulations governing corporate taxation, employees’ remuneration, natural
resources taxation and others might negatively affect the business and solvency of the particular subsidiary and Sakret Group as a whole.

The Issuer is engaged in production of high-end quality dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures and construction chemicals in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia. The majority of the Sakret Group
revenue was generated by building material sales in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia, remaining was generated by sales of services. The economic situation in all Baltic countries are assessed as stable which is
supported by both macroeconomic data, such as GDP and employment indicators. Latvia and Lithuania currently have an A+ credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlooks. Estonia
currently has an AA- credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook. Financial results of Sakret Group depends on the stable macroeconomic situation in each of the Baltic countries.

The demand for dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures that Sakret Group produces is directly linked to the state of construction industry in Baltic countries. Following a rapid growth over the
period of 2003 - 2008, the construction industry in the Baltics went into a nose-dive, with 2010 falling back to the level of 2002. Further years brought approximately 75% of cumulative growth until the
industry faced another fall in 2016. Latvia is expected to face substantial GDP growth above the average EU level over the next couple of years. Real estate prices have been increasing in line with domestic
income and the current low interest environment expand consumer capabilities in housing investments. In Estonia, construction confidence index has currently reached its post-crisis-high level, expecting
further sector growth. Despite positive outlook on construction sector in Baltic countries, the decline of activity in the industry may adversely affect the Sakret Group’s business and financial condition.
Sakret Group direct competitors across all Baltic countries are “Knauf”, “Ceresit”, “Saint-Gobain”, and "Baumit". All Sakret's direct competitors are international companies and have one or more factories in
Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia. In contrast to its competitors, Sakret Group is working exclusively for the Baltic market and is headquartered in the Baltics. The Issuer may have difficulties to compete with
these competitors, thus to remain competitive and to protect profit margins, Issuer must offer new products that keep pace with industrial and technological developments and must respond to customer
requirements on a timely basis. New technologies, changing commercial circumstances (for example, consolidation within a relevant sector), existing competitors (including those with a longer operating
history, greater resources and/or broader range of products) and new entrants to the markets in which Issuer currently operates or markets in which Sakret Group might target for expansion may
adversely affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Sakret Group operates 4 production plants in Riga (Latvia), Kedainai (Lithuania) and Paide (Estonia), thus any technological issues, human errors, incorrect planning or other issues directly connected with
production processes might result in stoppage of production output of plants, which will negatively affect the financial results of the Sakret Group. Group is operating its production plants since 2004 and
its employees have an extensive experience in managing production processes, thus any potential production risks are monitored and controlled.

Over the past years, the Issuer has maintained a moderate concentration among its customer base and this concentration has been stable over recent years. Sakret Group’s clients are all the largest DIY
chains in the Baltics, therefore, the concentration is directly linked with DIY market concentration. The loss of any of key customers and Issuer’s inability to find adequate alternative customers on a timely
basis, or at all, on commercially acceptable terms, could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Issuer’s customers have a period of time, generally 45 to 90 days after the date of invoice, depending on the type of customer, in which to effect payment. As a result, Issuer is subject to the risk that its
customers will not pay or will delay the payment for the products they purchased. This credit exposure risk may increase due to liquidity or solvency issues experienced by Issuer’s customers, for example,
as a result of an economic downturn or an adverse change in their business. If Issuer is unable to collect payment for amounts invoiced from its customers, it could have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition and results of operations. Issuer assigns credit to customers according to internal credit policy, which is developed, applying thorough internal analysis of Issuer’s customers
and seeking to diversify and limit its credit risk exposure.

After the refinancing of Luminor loan, BlueOrange Bank has provided EUR 4 million long-term loan, EUR 2 million overdraft facility, EUR 1.7 million credit line and EUR 3.0 million was raised via Notes
Issue. Despite the Issuer’s track record with credit institutions, there is a possibility that sources of financing may not be available in the amount required for the Issuer, or their conditions may be too
unfavorable, which may significantly affect Issuer’s ability to ensure sufficient financing for the company’s growth.

Principal of Notes will be repaid as a lump sum at maturity date, therefore the Issuer has increased refinancing risk. The Issuer will seek to refinance Notes issue or look for other funding sources in order to
decrease refinancing risk, but if Notes will not be refinanced before maturity date, as per the management estimates, the Issuer should be able to cover principal of Notes from Group’s own cash flow. In case
of additional capital investments would be required during the duration of Notes, which would decrease cash available for repayment of Notes at the maturity, Issuer plans to refinance part of the Notes
lump sum using long-term liabilities, which will be significantly decreased by 2022, based on the repayment schedule.

SAKRET-



Risk factors related to the Issuer (2) <

In the future, the Issuer’s activities will be affected by its ability to attract, preserve, and motivate highly qualified and experienced personnel. There is competition for personnel with the relevant skills and
Dependence on future experience in Baltic countries and it is comparatively high; however, the Issuer has successful experience in the field of personnel management, offering education, professional growth, and development
employees possibilities, as well as different motivation programs to the employees. As of 2019, the Issuer’s total number of employees was 140 persons. The majority of workers are involved in manufacturing
processes.

Operational risk is a possibility of experiencing losses due to insufficient or unsuccessful inner processes, personnel management, systems, or external circumstances. As of 2019, the number of Group’s
Operational risks employees reached 140 persons; therefore, thorough personnel selection is carried out, accurate descriptions of job duties are compiled, division of duties is coordinated, constant investments are made
within the IT system, which allows the Issuer to reduce operational risks.

The Issuer may be adversely affected by contractual claims, complaints and legal proceedings arising from relationships with partners, customers, competitors or regulatory authorities, as well as negative
publicity such proceedings might cause. Any such legal proceedings, complaints, contractual claims or negative publicity may materially affect the operational activities, financial situation and business
results of the Issuer.

Legal proceeding and
risk of other claims
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Risk factors related to Notes SARRET-

Notes will be secured with Collaterals that will be subject to ranking described in Annex 5 of the Terms of the Notes

Noteholders should be aware that since the Estonian subsidiary of the Issuer is giving upstream collaterals, such collaterals could be contested under Estonian law in a certain case. As per the provisions of
Estonian Commercial Code, an OU (osatihing)-type company shall not amongst others guarantee a loan taken by its shareholder whose share represents more than 5 per cent of its share capital. However, the

Collateral risk Estonian law stipulates that this prohibition does not apply to guaranteeing or securing a loan taken by the parent if grant of guarantee or security/collateral does not harm the financial status of the company
or the interests of its creditors.

If the Issuer fails to make the Coupon and / or Nominal payments in a timely manner, the Collateral Agent, acting in the interest of the Noteholders, will commence the Collateral enforcement proceedings
according to the procedures described in Section 5.4. of the Terms of the Issue.

Notes will be secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agreements executed between the Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent. In case of Issuer’s insolvency, Noteholders

Notes repayment risk . . L . . . .
pay have the same right to receive their investment as other creditors of the relevant group in accordance with applicable regulatory enactments.

Issuer has a call option, which means, that at certain dates during the term of Notes the Issuer may decide to execute an early repayment of Notes by paying back the principal at the certain price for the

Notes early repayment risk R . ) A .
Y repay Nominal amount to the Noteholders. Noteholders should take into account that Notes early redemption price may be lower than Notes price on the secondary market.

There is a risk, that Nasdaq Riga order to delist Notes from the First North before the maturity after the admission to trading took place, due to changes in FCMC opinion and Legal acts, including Nasdaq Riga

Delisting risk X
g regulations.
Price risk Notes will be repaid for their Nominal Value at the maturity, yet the price in the secondary market may change significantly. Neither the Issuer, nor any other person undertakes to maintain a certain price level
of Notes.
Liquidity risk Neither the Issuer, nor any other person guarantees the minimum liquidity of Notes. Noteholders should take into account that there may be difficulties in selling Notes in the secondary market.
Tax risk Tax rates and tax payment procedure applicable at the moment of purchase of Notes to the tax residents, non-residents of Latvia, and residents of other countries may change. The Issuer will not compensate

for the increase in taxes to Noteholders, therefore Noteholders may receive smaller payments related to Notes.



Other material information

Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties shall mean
transactions between the Issuer and the following
entities, controlled by members of the Management
board and/or members of the Supervisory Board:

1) SAKRET NORDEN 0OY

2) ALBAU GROUP: ALBAU SIA, ALBAU UAB,
ALBAU NORDE OU

3) LM21 SIA

Legal proceedings (last year)

There are no insolvency applications nor instituted
insolvency proceedings against the Issuer.

Management Board of the Issuer is not aware of any
legal proceedings in connection with fraud or other
economic violations in which Management Board
Members or Supervisory Board Members or other
employees of the Issuer have been involved.

Share incentive programs

EUR

SAKRET NORDEN 0OY
ALBAU SIA
ALBAU UAB

ALBAU NORDEN OU

LM21 SIA

EUR

SAKRET NORDEN 0OY
ALBAU SIA
ALBAU UAB

ALBAU NORDEN OU

LM21 SIA

31.12.2017
Receivables Liabilities
63 053
159 814
19 629
2 686 201 721
2017
Purchases Sales
368577
1328 454 21937
28 508
338 852 7 720

There are no share-based incentive programs or extraordinary bonus programs in place in the Issuer.

Significant patents

The Issuer does not hold any significant patents

SAKRET-

31.12.2018
Receivables Liabilities
39433
26 140 39922
50521 68 650
15417
261 335
2018
Purchases Sales
318 794
1108 204 21 604
356 306 13 960
47 062 70960
311 648 2220




Certified Adviser SARRET-

«BlueOrange Bank» acts as the First North Certified Adviser for AS «Sakret Holdings»

* Official name: AS BlueOrange Bank

* Registration number: 40003551060 ....;. <
 Main field of activity: Banking services 5. .E:E:E. B Il IeOran e
* Address: SmilSu iela 6, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia e f.:.:.‘

* Web page: www.blueorangebank.com

* Representative:

* Deniss Makedonskis

* E-mail: deniss.makedonskis@blueorangebank.com
* Phone: +371 67034219

As BlueOrange Bank is advising AS «Sakret Holdings» with the preparation of admission documents. The agreement is valid from the day of submitting
the application for admission to trading on First North to Nasdaq Riga until the actual first trading day of the Notes on First North platform.
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Annexes

Annex 1 - Audited consolidated annual report for 2017 (in English)
Annex 2 - Audited consolidated annual report for 2018 (in English)
Annex 3 - Audited non-consolidated annual report for 2017 (in Latvian)
Annex 4 - Audited non-consolidated annual report for 2018 (in Latvian)
Annex 5 - List of collaterals

Annex 6 - Terms of the Notes Issue (without annexes)

SAKRET-
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. . SAKRETe
Contact information

AS "SAKRET HOLDINGS"
“Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu novads, LV - 2121, Latvija
Phone: +371 67803650

e-mail: info@sakret.lv
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
(Company’s registration number 40103251030)

2017 consolidated annual report,

prepared in accordance with
Latvian statutory requirements,
and Independent auditors’ report*

(8th financial year)

* This version of financial statements is a translation from the original, which was prepared in the Latvian
language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the transiation is an accurate representation of the
original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version
of financial statements takes precedence over this translation.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvija, LV-2121

NAME OF THE COMPANY

LEGAL STATUS

REGISTRATION NUMBER,
PLACE AND DATE

TYPE OF OPERATIONS

NACE CODE

SHAREHOLDERS

LEGAL ADDRESS

BOARD MEMBERS

SUBSIDIARIES

COUNCIL OF THE COMPANY

SAKRET HOLDINGS
Joint-Stock Company

40103251030, Riga, 30 September 2009

Holding companies’ activity. Production and sale of dry,
ready for use building materials, chemicals and paints.

64.99, 23.64, 64.20, 20.12, 20.3, 20.5, 23.6, 46.73, 64.2

SIA Maris un Partneri (100%)
Reg. No. 40103296793

»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region,
Latvia, LV-2121

»Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region,
Latvia, LV-2121

Maris Kelpis, Chairman of the Board
Andis Ziedonis, Member of the Board

Juris Grinvalds, Member of the Board

SIA SAKRET (100%)
Reg. No. 40003622109,
»Ritvari”’, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV-2121

SIA SAKRET PLUS (90%)
Reg. No. 40003749392,
»Ritvari”’, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV-2121

UAB SAKRET LT (100%)
Reg. No. 3005988522
Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lithuania

OU SAKRET (100%)
Reg. No. 111961147
Mao kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Estonia

Andris Vanags, Chairman of the Council
(from 10 December 2013)

Elina Salava, Deputy Chairman of the Council
(from 10 December 2013)

Marting Biezais, Member of the Council

(from 10 December 2013) '




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stepinu region, Latvija, LV-2121

CORPORATE INFORMATION

REPORTING YEAR
PREVIOUS REPORTING YEAR
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ AND

CERTIFIED AUDITOR’S NAME AND
ADDRESS

1 January — 31 December 2017
1 January — 31 December 2016

SIA ,Deloitte Audits Latvia™
Licence No. 43

Gredu street 4a

Riga, Latvia,

LV-1019

Kitija Kepite
Certified auditor
Certificate No. 182




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration No.: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT

AS SAKRET HOLDINGS is the Group’s controlling entity in following associated companies:

* SIA SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Latvia, unified registration No. 40003622109,
legal address: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV2121), 100% of shares,

* SIA SAKRET PLUS (registered in the Republic of Latvia, unified registration No.
40003749392, legal address: ,,Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, LV2121), 90% of shares,

e UAB SAKRET LT (registered in the Republic of Lithuania, registration No. 3005988522,
legal address: Biochemiky g. 2, LT-57234, Kédainiai, Lithuania), 100% of shares and

e OU SAKRET (registered in the Republic of Estonia, registration No. 111961147, legal
address: Méo kiila, Paide vald, 72751 Jirvamaa, Estonia), 100% of shares.

The consolidated turnover in amount of EUR 19,30 million consists of the Group's subsidiaries turnovers. SIA
Sakret unconsolidated turnover in 2017 is EUR 7.41 million (+6% compared to 2016), OU Sakret
unconsolidated turnover is EUR 5,99 million (+6% compared to 2016), UAB Sakret LT unconsolidated turnover
is EUR 7,51 million (+40 % compared to 2016), SIA Sakret Plus unconsolidated turnover is EUR 2,35 million
(+6 % compared to 2016).

SAKRET Group’s results can be considered as satisfactory, due to observed various trends in Baltic construction
sector market in 2017. Although there was a moderate increase in construction volumes in Estonia and Lithuania,
however in Latvia, even though the total construction volumes compared to 2016 have risen by 19.5%, there
was a decrease by 11% in the residential construction segment, which is the Company’s target market. Similar
to the year 2016 there was almost no insulation of buildings in 2017 because the co-financing of European funds
was not ensured.

The Group continues to work with direct product consumers - builders, in order to introduce to them new
products and to explain the application specifics and the advantages of the existing products. Training seminars
are organized on regular basis, where both in theory and in practice, we inform about the right ways of choosing
and using the materials manufactured by our Company. In addition, the Company also works on discovering
additional product segments in the building materials market in order to increase its competitiveness.

SAKRET Group is actively working on strengthening the product range with additional products. During the
reporting period, SAKRET Group’s investment in research and development was in amount of
EUR 109,0 thousands.

Future prospects

In October 2013 the Company and its affiliated companies have concluded a long-term credit agreement with
AS DNB Bank (now AS Luminor Bank). According to credit agreement conditions, the term of the credit
principal repayment was set at December 31, 2017 with a possibility to extend it. At the beginning of 2018 the
credit agreement term was extended and set at January 31, 2019. Based on current credit agreement terms, the
entity and its related parties have to agree on further cooperation with AS Luminor bank, in line with Sakret
Group’s future development plans, until the above mentioned date.

Since the restructuring of the credit in 2013, the Company and its related companies have completed all of
the liabilities against the bank until December 2017, when the repayment of the remaining amount of the credit
was intended under the contract, therefore the Governing Board of the company considers that the agreement
with the Bank will be achieved. The credit agreement provided that the repayment deadline, given that both
parties would achieve an agreement, may be extended. In 2017, the Company commenced discussions with the
bank on the extension of the maturity date of the credit. A corresponding agreement with the bank was achieved
and as a result the credit agreement No 34/13K23 Amendments No 3 were signed on 28 February 2018, which
provide for the final maturity of the credit on 31 January 2019. In the reporting period, the Company has not
fulfilled certain conditions of the Credit Agreement relating to financial (profit) indicators.

The financial statements were signed on 28 May 2018 on the Company’s behalf by —_

. \
A /

— /%/Z | % P>

\ A V-

Maris Kelpis \'*Apdisjiedénis Ju}g Grinvalds
Chairmen of the board Membe;of the Board Meléber of the Board
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 3

Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings and constructions
Equipment and machinery
Other fixed assets
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment

Total property, plant, equipment and intangible 4
assets

Non-current financial investments
Other non-current receivables
Other investments
Total non-current financial investments
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Raw materials, materials and consumables
Finished goods and goods for sale
Prepayments for goods and services
Total inventories

Receivables
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Deferred expenses
Short-term loan to shareholder 5
Total receivables

6,19(c)

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
411 872 317129
8 780 792 9229 525
2537216 2925925
99 582 71 068
6 529 4296
11424 119 12 230 814
13918 13 926
- 28
13 918 13 954
11 849 909 12 561 897
1367 758 1565903
896 466 942 702
27670 6319
2291894 2514 924
2515993 1 953 264
142 318 159 127
36392 33776
35572 35572
2730275 2181 739
306 063 397 591
5328 232 5094 254
17 178 141 17 656 151

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital
Denomination reserve
Reorganization reserve
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations reserve
Retained earnings:
a) prior year retained earnings
b) loss for the year
Equity attributable to parent Company’s
shareholders
Minority shareholder’s participation share
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Other borrowings
Payables to related parties
Finance lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Loans from credit institutions
Other borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Advances from customers
Trade payables
Payables to related parties
Taxes and mandatory state social security
contributions
Other payables
Accrued liabilities
Unpaid dividends to minority shareholder
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

~J

10
19(d)

19(d)

11
12

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
35000 35000
572 572
(8 491 750) (8 491 750)
24 899 24 899
148 327 143 870
(239 138) 4457
(8 522 090) (8 282 952)
176 877 158 371
(8 345 213) (8 124 581)
16 641 137 17 341 139
167 093 167 093
757 532 767 932
17 565 762 18 276 164
1 700 000 2799 999
1170 582 654 835
37 545 37 545
118 865 222 099
3005 926 1957 165
421 535 624 844
325 638 520983
139 133 98 845
1009 365 559 250
29 003 29 003
7 957 592 7 504 568
25 523 354 25 780 732
17 178 141 17 656 151

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR 2017
2017 2016
Notes EUR EUR
Revenue 13 19298 618 17 648 223
Cost of goods sold 14 (14 649 323) (13 220 742)
Gross profit 4 649 295 4 427 481
Selling expenses 15 (2 764 948) (2 544 522)
Administration expenses 16 (1 048 794) (982 097)
Other operating income 17 21767 139 523
Other operating expenses (87 570) (56 821)
Interest and similar income 1552 1284
Interest and similar expenses (976 775) (878 922)
(Loss)/Profit before taxes (205 473) 105 926
Corporate income tax (15 159) (79 557)
(Loss)/Profit for the reporting year (220 632) 26 369
(Loss)/Profit attributable to:
Parent Company’s shareholders (239 138) 4 457
Minority shareholders 18 506 21912
(220 632) 26 369

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030

Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR 2017
Notes 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities EUR EUR
(Loss)/Profit before taxes (205 473) 105 926
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 14,15,16 1027 755 1077 005
Interest income (1552) (1284)
Interest expenses 976 775 878 922
Net profit from disposal of fixed assets (10 925) (3 795)
Profit before adjustments for capital 1786 580 2 056 774
Net changes in working capital 717 837 542 770
Cash flows from operating activities 2 504 417 2 599 544
Corporate income tax paid (71 271) (40 950)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2 433 146 2 558 594
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets (309 013) (309 092)
Interest received - -
Net cash flows from investing activities (309 013) (309 092)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 20 369 4567
(Paid) loans, net (1284 254)  (1392722)
Interest paid (951 776) (903 512)
Payments for leased property, plant and equipment - (49 416)
Net cash flows from financing activities (2215661) (2 341 083)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (91 528) (91 581)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 397 591 489 172
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 306 063 397 591

Notes on pages 11 to 23 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The main business activity of the Company is holding companies’ operations, production and sale of dry, ready for
use building materials, chemicals and paints.

2. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Latvia On the
Annual Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements.

The consolidated financial statements include accounting data of AS "SAKRET HOLDINGS", SIA "SAKRET",
SIA "SAKRET PLUS", OU "SAKRET", UAB "SAKRET LT”. The control is ensured if the Company has
opportunity to determine the financial and operating policies of another company as well as to benefit from these
transactions. The Company gained control of SIA "SAKRET" (100%), SIA "SAKRET PLUS" (90%),
OU "SAKRET" (100%) and UAB "SAKRET LT" (100%) on 1 November 2013.

Financial statements of subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group’s financial statements by combining particular

assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses items. During the preparation of the Group's financial statements mutual
balances and transactions among the Group’s companies as well as unrealized gains and losses were excluded.

Foreign currency

The accompanying financial statements are presented in the currency of European Union, the euro (hereinafter
"EUR"), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

2017 2016
EUR EUR
EUR 1.0000 1.0000
SEK 9,8438 9,5505

Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into the EUR are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated
useful lives. Generally, intangible assets are amortized over a period of 5 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost including import duties and non-deductible purchase taxes
as well as any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and place for its intended use.
Repair and maintenance costs incurred after the asset is put into operation are reflected in statement of profit and
loss as incurred. If it is certain that due to related costs the economic benefits will be gained in future, exceeding the
initial return on assets, such costs are capitalized to value of fixed assets.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets calculated based on historical cost
using the straight-line method at the following rates:

Annual rate
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2017
Buildings 4% - 10%
Equipment and machinery 6% - 33%
Other fixed assets 10% -50%

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment, if there is any indication that
the recoverable value is lower than their carrying amounts. If the assets’ recoverable values are lower than their
carrying amounts, these assets are written off to its’ recoverable values. The recoverable value is the higher of the
following values: the asset's fair value less cost of sale or value from the use of the asset.

Gains and losses on property, plant and equipment disposals are determined by the difference between the carrying
amount and the income from sale, and included in the statement of profit and loss as incurred..

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of the following values: cost or market value. Costs comprise direct materials
costs as well as, if applicable, direct labor costs and other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventory cost price is determined using FIFO (first-in, first-out)
method. If necessary, obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are written-off.

Receivables

Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated at their nominal value less provision for doubtful receivables. On
each balance sheet date the Group evaluates if there is an objective evidence indicating that the client will not be
able to meet payment terms. Each debtor is analyzed individually. Provisions for doubtful debts are made, the
amount of which is determined as the difference between the recoverable value and nominal value.

Deferred expenses

Expenses incurred and paid in the reporting year, but which relate to the next reporting periods, are recognized as
deferred expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balances of current accounts with banks.

Leases

Finance leases, under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership associated with
the asset, are recognized in the balance sheet as asset in the amount that in the beginning of the lease period is equal
to fair value of leased asset or, if lower, than the minimum of lease payments at present value. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance charge so as to achieve a constant interest rate on the liability balance.
Financial expenses are included in the statement of profit and loss as interest expense.

If there is sufficient basis to believe that at the rental period end the lessee will obtain ownership of the lease, the
asset's useful life is assumed as period of expected use. Otherwise, capitalized leased assets are depreciated, using
the straight-line method, during the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term depending on which of these
periods is shorter.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2017

Leases under which substantially all ownership of the risks and rewards are assumed by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense over the lease term. The Group’s liabilities
deriving from operating lease agreements are recorded as off-balance sheet liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.
Otherwise, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Accrual for unused vacations

Accrual for unused vacations is calculated by multiplying employees’ average salary and mandatory social insurance
contributions during last 3-6 months by the number of unused vacation days at the end of the reporting year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources from the Group embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Loans and borrowings

Loans are recognized initially at cost determined by lending or borrowing amount at fair value adding the costs
associated with loan issue or subtracting borrowing costs incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, all loans are
stated at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
costs associated with loan issue or borrowing as well as with any lending or borrowing-related discounts or bonuses.
Gains or losses resulted from amortization are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as interest income and
expenses.

Revenue and revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of value added tax. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

s the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated
with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

e the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
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AS SAKRET HOLDINGS
Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2017

Interest income

Revenues related to loans are recognized in the period incurred and stated in the position “Interest and similar income™.

Interest expense

Costs associated with borrowings are written off in the period incurred and stated in the position "Interest and similar

charges".

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax consists of the calculated and deferred corporate income tax for the accounting year. Corporate
income tax for the accounting year is calculated by applying a tax rate of 15% to the taxable income for the financial

period.

Related parties

Related companies are parent and subsidiary companies. AS SAKRET HOLDINGS, "Ritvari" Rumbula, Stopinu region,

LVv-2121

is the parent company, which is responsible for the preparation of consolidation.

Use of estimates

The legislation of the Republic of Latvia requires that in preparing the financial statements the management of the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
off-balance sheet assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses

during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The critical judgments and key estimates concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty which
exist at the reporting date of the financial statements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and Habilities during the next reporting period:

The Group evaluates trade receivables and assesses their recoverability, making allowances for doubtful and bad
trade receivables, if necessary. The Group’s management has evaluated trade receivables and considers that it is
not necessary to make any additional allowances as of 31 December 2017, see Note 6.

The Group’s management evaluates the carrying value of inventories and assesses whether the net realizable
value exceeds the cost price. Allowances are made in order to write off the value of inventories to their net
realizable value, if necessary. The Group’s management has evaluated the net realizable value of inventories and
considers that it is not necessary to make any adjustments with regards to the carrying value of inventories as of
31 December 2017.

The Group evaluates issued loans and their recoverability. The Company’s management has evaluated the
recoverability of the issued loans and considers that it is not necessary to make an allowance as of 31 December

2017.

The Group management reviews the carrying values of property, plant and equipment and assesses whenever
indications exist that the assets’ recoverable value is lower than their carrying amounts. The Group’s management
calculates and records an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment based on the estimates related to the
expected future use. Taking into consideration the Group’s planned cash flows from fixed assets, the Group’s
management considers that no significant adjustments to the carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are necessary as of 31 December 2017.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are assessed at each balance sheet date and changed, if necessary,
to reflect the Group’s management current view on their remaining useful lives in the light of changes in
technology, the remaining prospective economic utilization of the assets and their physical condition. The
Group’s management considers that no adjustments to the useful life of property, plant and equipment
should be made as of 31 December 2017.
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Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2017

e The Group assesses its ability to continue as a going concern. See Note 21.

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Licenses Product Intangible Total
development assets under
construction
EUR EUR EUR EUR
HISTORICAL COST
As of 31 December 2016 352 256 - 137 683 489 939
Additions 13 400 - 108 957 122 357
Disposals (933) - - (933)
Reclassified from/to another - 79 715 (79 715) -
position
As of 31 December 2017 364 723 79 715 166 925 611 363
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
As of 31 December 2016 172 810 - - 172 810
Charge 23 804 3810 - 27614
Disposals (933) - - (933)
As of 31 December 2017 195 681 3810 - 199 491
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
As of 31 December 2016 179 446 - 137 683 317129
As of 31 December 2017 169 042 75 905 166 925 411 872

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land, Equipment and Other fixed Prepayments Total
buildings machinery assets
and
constructi
ons
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
HISTORICAL COST
As of 31 December 2016 13 645 852 8799 128 1287 549 4 296 23 736 825
Additions - 117 227 68 590 6529 192 346
Disposals - (66 142) (12 265) - (78 407)
Reclassified - 4296 - (4 296) -
As of 31 December 2017 13 645 852 8 854 509 1343874 6 529 23 850 764
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As of 31 December 2016 4 416 327 5873203 1216 481 - 11 506 011
Charge 448 733 504 998 37993 - 991 724
Disposals - (60 908) (10 182) - (71 090)
As of 31 December 2017 4 865 060 6317 293 1244 292 - 12 426 645
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
As of 31 December 2016 9229 525 2 925 925 71 068 4296 12 230 814
As of 31 December 2017 8 780 792 2 537 216 99 582 6 529 11424 119

Information on the Group's pledged assets is stated in Note 8. Information on residual values of assets purchased
under finance leasing is stated in Note 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR 2017

5. SHORT-TERM LOAN TO SHAREHOLDER

Agreement  Effective Maturity 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
No.and  interest rate
currency (%) EUR EUR
,Maris un Partneri” No.1, 3.5% 31.12.2018. 35572 35572
SIA* EUR
Total short-term loan 35572 35572
* The loan is unsecured.
6. TRADE RECEIVABLES
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Receivables for goods and services 3122421 2 548 933
Allowance for doubtful receivables (606 428) (595 669)
Total 2 515993 1953 264
Change in allowance for doubtful receivables:
2017 2016
EUR EUR
At the beginning of the reporting year 595 669 594 712
Allowances made during the year 10 759 957
At the end of the reporting year 606 428 595 669

* The Group has evaluated the recoverability of doubtful debts and reduced the provisions for those debts that

according to the Company Management’s consideration are irrecoverable.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2017 and 2013, the registered and fully paid share capital consists of 35 000 shares with a
nominal value of EUR 1 per share. Share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 35 000. As a result of
denomination in 2014, the share capital decrease of EUR 572 is reflected in the Company’s share capital under

“Denomination reserve” item.
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Registration number: 40103251030
Address: “Ritvari”, Rumbula, Stopinu region, Latvia, LV-2121

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2017

8. LOANS FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Long-term: Agreement No. and Effective Maturity The remaining The remaining
currency interest rate principal principal
(%) amount as of amount as of
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
gs »]’(';(“]m‘";’f No. 34/13K23, EUR 3 month 31.01.2019.
ank”’(loan :

Euribor + 3% 16 641 137 17341 139
Total long-term loans from credit institutions 16 641 137 17 341 139

Short-tern: Agreement No. and Effective Maturity The remaining The remaining

currency interest rate principal principal
(%) amount as of amount as  of

31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
AS ,,Luminor No 34/13K23, EUR 3 month

Bank"(loan) Euribor +3% 31122018 1 700 000 2799 999
Total short-term loans from credit institutions 1700 000 2 799 999

Information on collateral and guarantees is described in Note 22.

In October 2013 the Company and its affiliated companies have concluded a long-term credit agreement with AS DNB
Bank (now AS Luminor Bank). According to credit agreement conditions, outstanding long-term loan principal repayment
term was set at December 31, 2017 with a possibility to extend it. At the beginning of 2018 the credit agreement term was
extended and set at January 31, 2019. Based on current credit agreement terms, the entity and its related parties have to
agree on further cooperation with AS Luminor bank, in line with Sakret Group’s future development plans, until the above
mentioned date.

Since the restructuring of the credit in 2013, the Company and its related companies have completed all of the liabilities
against the bank until December 2017, when the repayment of the remaining amount of credit was intended under the
contract, therefore the Governing Board of the company considers that the agreement with the Bank will be concluded.
The credit agreement provided that the repayment deadline, given that both parties would achieve an agreement, may be
extended. In 2017, the Company commenced discussions with the bank on the extension of the maturity date of the credit.
A corresponding agreement with the bank was achieved, and as a result the credit agreement No 34/13K23 Amendments
No 3 were signed on 28 February 2018, which provide for the final maturity of the credit on 31 January 2019. In the
reporting period, the Company has not fulfilled certain conditions of the Credit Agreement relating to financial (profit)
indicators.

According to signed agreements, the Group is obligated to achieve certain financial ratios during the contract period.
According to management's assessment as of 31 December, 2017 the Company has not fulfilled certain conditions of the
Credit Agreement relating to financial (profit) indicators.

9. FINANCE LEASE

Maturity Agreement Effective Long-term Short- Residual
currency interest rate part term part value of
(%) leased
asset
SIA “ALBAU” 31.07.2017 EUR 15% - 37 545 37 545
Total  31.12.2017. - 37 545 37 545
Total  31.12.2016. - 37 545 37 545
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10. OTHER BORROWINGS

Long-term: Agreement No. Effective Maturity 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
interest EUR EUR
rate (%)
Other borrowings 200901/200902/ 5% 31.12.2018. 167 093 167 093
200903/200904
Kopa 167 093 167 093
Short-term: Agreement No, Effective Maturity 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
interest rate EUR EUR
(%)
WERELEND VARA  Annex No. 3 10%
ou 2.1-14-8/20 31.12.2018. 150 000 150 000
Bikuvos prekyba
UAB 24.04.2017. 7% 31.07.2018 300 000 -
agreement
SIA ,,Luminor Factoring agreement 3 Month
Lizings Latvija” No. Euribor +3%  31.01.2019. 720 582 504 835
0000157/158/159/001
Kopa 1170582 654 835
11. OTHER PAYABLES
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Employees’ salaries 113262 78 635
Accrued interest on loans 19 657 17 268
Other 6214 2942
Total 139 133 98 845
12, ACCRUED LIABILITIES
31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.
EUR EUR
Clients’ annual discounts 754 033 346 961
Accrual for unused vacations 183 153 167 737
Expenses for which invoices have been received in the next 70 049 39 391
financial year 2130 5161
Other
Total 1 009 365 559 250
13. REVENUE
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Revenue from sale of goods and services rendered 19 298 618 17 648 223
Total 19 298 618 17 648 223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14.COST OF GOODS SOLD

2017 2016
EUR EUR
Purchase cost of raw materials (11 413 033) (10 229 874)
Remuneration for work (962 766) (854 928)
Depreciation (931 442) (986 193)
Energy resources expenses (492 075) (428 039)
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
risk duty (265 378) (230 329)
Repair and spare parts expenses (241 480) (220 748)
Franchise expenses (149 938) (132 946)
Rent of real estate and fixed assets (52774) (33 545)
Other expenses (140 437) (104 140)
Total (14 649 323) (13 220 742)
15. SELLING EXPENSES
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Goods delivery expenses (975 635) (848 190)
Remuneration for work (630 496) (601 684)
Advertising and marketing expenses (412 904) (355 278)
Sales employees transport expenses (202 716) (180 165)
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
risk duty _ (178 989) (173 960)
Depreciation (32 745) (29 835)
Other expenses (331 463) (355 410)
Total (2 764 948) (2 544 522)
16. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Remuneration for work (390 383) (363 383)
Business consulting services (112 555) (114 783)
Mandatory state social security contributions and entrepreneurial
risk duty (107 409) (97 021)
Depreciation and amortization (63 568) (60 977)
Legal services (46 644) (29 921)
Communication expenses (17 565) (19 412)
Other expenses (310 670) (296 600)
Total (1 048 794) (982 097)
17. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2017 2016
EUR EUR
Profit from sale of fixed assets 10925 3795
Received financial support - 123 685
Other income 10 842 12 043
Total 21 767 139 523
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18. AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES DURING THE REPORTING YEAR

2017 2016
The Group’s average number of employees in the reporting year
131 128
19. TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES
(a) Goods sold and services rendered
2017 2016
EUR EUR
SAKRET NORDEN OY 368 577 512224
ALBAU SIA 21937 9493
LM 21 SIA 7720 2220
MARIS UN PARTNERI SIA 695 695
Total 398 929 524 632
(b) Goods, purchase of real estate and services received
2017 2016
EUR EUR
ALBAU SIA 1328 454 1587 652
LM 21 SIA 338 852 348 281
ALBAU UAB 28 508 -
Total 1695 814 1935933

(¢) Receivables arising from transactions with related parties

SAKRET NORDEN OY
ALBAU UAB

MARIS UN PARTNERI SIA
LM 21 SIA

ALBAU SIA

Total

31.12.2017.
EUR

63 053
19 629
6623
2 686

91 991

T ————cae—

31.12.2016.
EUR

59018

5782

3167
67 967

T ————
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(d) Payables to related parties

Non-current portion 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.

EUR EUR
MARIS KELPIS 700 042 709 242
PETERIS STUDENTS 57490 58 690
Total 757 532 767 932
Current portion 31.12.2017. 31.12.2016.

EUR EUR
LM 21 SIA 201 721 128 443
ALBAU SIA 159 814 346 401
MARIS KELPIS 60 000 126 000
PETERIS STUDENTS - 24 000
Total 421535 624 844

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise loans from credit institutions, factoring, financial leasing, and
cash. Aim of these financial instruments is to ensure financing for the Group's business operations. In addition, the
Group uses other financial instruments such as - a loan to shareholder, trade receivables and other receivables, trade
payables and other payables, which arise directly from business activities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly conducts transactions in euros. Since the Latvian, Lithuanian and Estonian national currency is
Euro, this is not considered as significant risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly arising from bank loans.

Credit risk

The Group controls the credit risk by constantly evaluating the credit repayment history of its customers and
establishing credit agreement conditions for each client individually. In addition, the Group monitors overdue trade
receivable balances on regular basis in order to minimize the possibility of bad debts.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle its obligations in full as they fall due. The aim of
the Group’s liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and its equivalents, and to ensure the
availability of funding through sufficient amount of committed bank credit line facilities (see Note 8) to settle its
obligations at a given date. In May 2018, the total factoring limit for Sakret Group companies was increased from
EUR 1,000,00 thousand to EUR 1 700,00 thousand. The Group constantly assesses the matching of repayment terms
ofits financial assets and liabilities and the stability of long-term investment sources. An operating cash flow forecast
is prepared to manage the liquidity risk on a monthly basis after the actual results of the previous month are available.
The Group's management considers that that the Group will have sufficient cash resources so its liquidity will not
be compromised.

21. GOING CONCERN

The Group has finished year 2017 with a loss of EUR 220 632. The Group's equity as of 31 December 2017 was
negative in amount of EUR 8 345 213 and its current liabilities exceeded current assets by EUR 2 629 360. As of 31
December 2017 the Group had significant liabilities to credit institutions in amount of EUR 18 341 137 with the
final repayment term on 31 January 2019. Under the conditions of the existing credit agreement, the company and
its related companies, together with AS Luminor Bank, must agree on further cooperation, based on the development
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NEATKARIGU REVIDENTU ZINOJUMS
AS SAKRET HOLDINGS dalibniekam:

Miisu atzinums ar iebildi par finansu parskatu

Esam veikui pievienotaja AS SAKRET HOLDINGS (*“Sabiedriba”) gada parskatd ietverta finansu parskata, kas
atspogulots no 5. lidz 22. lapai, reviziju. Pievienotais finan$u parskats ietver bilanci 2018. gada 31. decembri, pelnas
vai zaud&jumu aprekinu, pa$u kapitala izmainu parskatu un naudas plismas parskatu par 2018. gadu, ka ar1 finansu
pérskata pielikumu, kas ietver nozimigu gramatvedibas uzskaites principu kopsavilkumu.

Musuprat, iznemot sadala Atzinuma ar iebildi pamatojums aprakstito apstaklu iespejamo ietekmi, pievienotais finansu
parskats sniedz patiesu un skaidru prieksstatu par AS SAKRET HOLDINGS finansialo stavokli 2018. gada 31. decembrT
un par tés darbibas finansu rezultatiem un naudas plismu 2018. gada saskana ar Latvijas Republikas Gada parskatu un
konsolidéto gada parskatu likumu (“Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likums™).

Atzinuma ar iebildi pamatojums

Ka aprakstits finansu parskata 5., 6. un 7. pielikumos, 2018. gada 31. decembri AS SAKRET HOLDINGS bilancé ir
ieklauti nenodroginati aizdevumi radniecigajam sabiedribdm un radniecigo sabiedribu paradi EUR 2 918 009 apméra
(31.12.2017.: EUR 2 814 049 apméra). Revizijas laikd mums nebija iespéjas iegiit pietickamus un atbilstosus revizijas
pieradijumus, lai parliecinatos par minéto aktivu atgiistamibu un noteiktu, vai ir nepiecieSams izveidot uzkrajumus
saistiba ar iesp&jamo So aktivu vertibas samazinasanos. Tad&jadi, mes neizsakam savu atzinumu par Sabiedribas 2018.
gada 31. decembra bilanc€ ieklauto minéto aktivu vértibu.

Atbilstosi Latvijas Republikas Revizijas pakalpojumu likumam (“Revizijas pakalpojumu likums”) més veicam reviziju
saskana ar Latvijas Republika atzitiem starptautiskajiem revizijas standartiem (turpmak- SRS). Misu pienakumi, kas
noteikti $ajos standartos, ir turpmak aprakstiti milsu zinojuma sadala Revidenta atbildiba par finansu parskata reviziju.

Mes esam neatkarigi no Sabiedribas saskana ar Starptautiskas Gramatvezu &tikas standartu padomes izstradata
Profesionalu gramatvezu étikas kodeksa (SGESP kodekss) prasibam un Revizijas pakalpojumu likuma ieklautajam
neatkaribas prasibam, kas ir piemérojamas miisu veiktajai finansu parskata revizijai Latvijas Republika. Més esam
ieverojusi ar1 SGESP kodeksa un Revizijas pakalpojumu likumi noteiktos pargjos profesionalas etikas principus un
objektivitates prasibas.

Mes uzskatam, ka miisu iegatie revizijas pierddijumi dod pietickamu un atbilstosu pamatojumu misu atzinumam ar
iebildi.

Galvenie revizijas jautajumi

Galvenie revizijas jautajumi ir tadi jautajumi, kas, pamatojoties uz miisu profesionalo spriedumu, parskata gada finanu
parskatu revizija bija visnozimigakie. Sie jautajumi kopuma tika apskatiti finansu parskatu revizijas konteksta, ka ar
sagatavojot atzinumu par Siem finan3u parskatiem, tapéc atsevisku atzinumu par Siem jautajumiem meés neizsakam.

Mes esam noteikusi zemak minéto jautajumu ka galveno revizijas jautajumu, par kuru ir jasniedz informacija musu
zinojuma.

Deloitte nozime vienu vai vairakus no sekojosiem: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, Lielbritanijas sabiedribu ar ierobezotu atbildibu (,DTTL", tas grupas sabiedribas un ar tam saistitas sabiedribas.
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Galvenais revizijas jautajums l Ka §is jautdjums tika izskatits revizija

Darbibas turpina$anas princips
Ka aprakstits finanSu parskata 22. pielikuma Sabiedriba ir Més izvertgjam faktus par notikumiem un
holdinga kompanija un vienigais dalibnieks SIA Sakret, Sakret apstakliem, kas vargtu radit 3aubas par Sabiedribas
OU, Sakret UAB un 90% kapitildalu Tpagnieks Sakret Plus SIA sp&ju turpinat darbibu.

(“Koncerns™).

2018. gada 31. decembri Koncernam bija negativs paSu kapitals | Més san€émam un izvert€jam vadibas planus par
7977 858 EUR apméra, un ta Istermipa saistibas parsniedza ta | finansu resursu pieejamibu.
apgrozamos Iidzeklus par EUR 18 274 874, kas, galvenokart,
saistits ar kreditsaistibu pret AS Luminor banka 17 641 137
EUR apmera ar atmaksas terminu 2019. gada 30. septembris
klasifikaciju Istermina saistibu sastava.

Meés izskatTjam juridisko dokumentaciju, kas saistita
ar refinansé8anas vieno$anos un aiznémuma saistibu
nokartofanu ar AS Luminor Banka, ieskaitot
Uz So finanSu parskatu izdo¥anas bridi tiek noslégts ngun'K.)s ietverto darijuma pabeigSanas nosacfjumu
kreditsaistibu refinans€Sanas process. Ir nodroSinats citas | analizi.

kreditiestades finans&jums un tiek veikts kreditsaistibu dzésanas
process ar AS Luminor banka. Procesa rezultdta aiznémumu | pMas analiz&jam vadibas sagatavotas naudas plismas
saistibas pret AS Luminor banka tiks dzéstas, veicot norékinu prognozes saistibd ar Sabiedribas sp&ju generdt
par 9 milj. EUR un Koncernam biis pieejams jauns ilgtermina pietiekamas nakotnes naudas pliismas.

finans&ums. Uz finan3u parskatu apstiprinaianas bridi minéta
summa atrodas darijuma konta un parskaitijums par labu AS
Luminor bank tiks veikts lidzko bus registréti nodroinajumi par
labu jaunajai kreditiestadei, saskana ar darfjuma konta ligumu,
kas noslégts starp Sakret grupas uzpémumiem un
kreditiestadeém. Planots, ka process tiks pabeigts ne vélak ka lidz
2019. gada oktobra beigam.

Mes novertgjam ar darbibas turpind$anas principa
piemeroanu  saistitds informiacijas atklaganas
pilnigumu un precizitati.

Apstakli 2018. gada 31. decembrT liecindja, ka pastav biitiska
nenoteiktiba saistiba ar Sabiedribas spgju turpinat darbibu,
Tade] vadibas veiktais izvert€ums saistiba ar darbibas
turpinaSanas principa pieméroSanu, kas ietver aiznémumu
parstrukturéSanu, Koncemna paSu kapitala un likviditdtes
stavokla uzlaboSanu, spéju izpildit aiznémumu saistibas, tika
uzskatits par galveno revizijas jautdjumu, jo tas ietver
nozimigas vadibas apl@ses par nakotnes finan$u rezultatiem un
darbibas turpinaSanas jautajuma atklasanu finanu parskatos.

ZinoSana par citu informdciju

Par citu informaciju atbild Sabiedribas vadiba. Citu informaciju veido Vadibas zinojums, kas ietverts pievienota gada
pérskata 4. lapa un informacija par Sabiedribu, kas ietverta 3. lapa.

Miisu atzinums par finandu parskatu neattiecas uz gada parskata ietverto citu informaciju, un més nesniedzam par to
nekada veida apliecinajumu, iznemot to ka noradits miisu zinojuma sadald Citas zipoSanas prasibas saskand ar Latvijas
Republikas tiesibu aktu prasibam.

Saistiba ar finan$u parskata reviziju musu pienakums ir iepazities ar citu informaciju un, to darot, izvertét, vai 31 cita
informacija bitiski neatSkiras no finansu parskata informacijas vai no miisu zindanam, kuras més ieguvam revizijas
gaita, un vai ta nesatur cita veida biitiskas neatbilstibas.

Ja, balstoties uz veikto darbu un nemot véra revizijas laika giitas zinas un izpratni par Sabiedribu un tas darbibas vidi,
més secinam, ka citd informacija ir biitiskas neatbilstibas, miisu pienakums ir zinot par $adiem apstakliem. Misu
uzmanibas loka nav nakusi apstakli, par kuriem biitu jazino.
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vairak ka 150 vietejo un arvalstu ekspertu palidzibu.
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Citas zinoSanas prasibas saskand ar Latvijas Republikas tiesibu aktu prasibam

Papildus tam, saskana ar Revizijas pakalpojumu likumu misu pienakums ir sniegt viedokli, vai Vadibas zinojums ir
sagatavots saskapa ar ta sagatavoSanu reglament€jo3a normativa akta, Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu
likuma, prasibam.

Pamatojoties vienigi uz misu revizijas ietvaros veiktajam procediirim, misuprat:

¢  Vadibas zinojuma par parskata gadu, par kuru ir sagatavots finangu parskats, sniegta informécija atbilst
finan3u parskatam, un

*  Vadibas zinojums ir sagatavots saskana ar Gada parskatu un konsolidéto gada parskatu likuma prasibam.
Vadibas un personu, kuram uzticéta Sabiedribas parraudziba, atbildiba par finansu parskatu

Vadiba ir atbildiga par tada finanu parskata, kas sniedz patiesu un skaidru priek3statu, sagatavoSanu saskana ar Gada
pérskatu un konsolideto gada parskatu likumu, ka arT par tadas iek3&jas kontroles sistémas uzturgSanu, kida saskana ar
vadibas viedokli ir nepiecieS8ama, lai biitu iesp&jams sagatavot finan¥u parskatu, kas nesatur ne krap3anas, ne kludas de]

izraisitas butiskas neatbilstibas.

Sagatavojot finanSu parskatu, vadibas pienakums ir izvértét Sabiedribas sp&ju turpinat darbibu, pec nepieciesamibas
sniedzot informaciju par apstakliem, kas saistiti ar Sabiedribas spéju turpinat darbibu un darbibas turpinaSanas principa
piemeéroSanu, ja vien vadiba neplano Sabiedribas likvidaciju vai tas darbibas izbeig$anu, vai ar tai nav citas redlas
alternativas ka SabiedrTbas likvidacija vai darbibas izbeigSana.

Personas, kuram uzticéta Sabiedribas parraudziba, ir atbildigas par Sabiedribas finansu parskata sagatavo¥anas procesa
uzraudzibu.

Revidentu atbildiba par finanSu parskata reviziju

Miisu mérkis ir iegiit pietiekamu pérliecibu par to, ka finansu parskats kopuma nesatur kliidas vai krap$anas dé] izraisitas
butiskas neatbilstibas, un sniegt revidentu zinojumu, kurd izteikts atzinums. Pietickama parlieciba ir augsta limena
parlieciba, bet ta negaranté, ka revizija, kas veikta saskana ar SRS, vienmér tiks atklata biitiska neatbilstiba, ja tada
pastav. Neatbilstibas var rasties krapSanas vai kladas dél, un tas ir uzskatdmas par biitiskam, ja var pamatoti uzskafit, ka
tas katra atseviSki vai visas kopa varétu ietekmét saimnieciskos lemumus, ko lietotdji pienem, balstoties uz ¥o finandu
parskatu.

Veicot reviziju saskana ar SRS, visa revizijas procesa gaita mes izdaram profesionalus spriedumus un saglabijam
profesionalo skepticismu. M&s ar:

®  identificéjam un izvért&jam riskus, ka finansu parskata varétu but krap§anas vai kliidas dé] izraistas biitiskas
neatbilstibas, izstrddajam un veicam revizijas proceduras $o risku mazina¥anai, ka ari ieglistam revizijas
pieradijumus, kas sniedz pietickamu un atbilstofu pamatojumu miisu atzinumam. Risks, ka netiks atklatas
bitiskas neatbilstibas krapsanas dél, ir augstaks neka risks, ka netiks atklatas kliidas izraisitas neatbilstibas, jo
krapSana var ietvert slepenas norunas, dokumentu viltofanu, informacijas neuzradi¥anu ar nodomu,
informacijas nepatiesu atspoguloSanu vai iek$gjas kontroles parkapumus;

®  iegustam izpratni par iekS€jo kontroli, kas ir biitiska revizijas veik§anai, lai izstradatu konkrétajiem apstikliem
atbilstoas revizijas procediiras, bet nevis, lai sniegtu atzinumu par Sabiedribas ieks&jas kontroles efektivitati;

® izvertgjam pielietoto gramatvedibas politiku atbilstibu un gramatvedibas aplésu un attiecigas vadibas uzraditas
informacijas pamatotibu;

®  izdaram secinajumu par vadibas piemerota darbibas turpinasanas principa atbilstibu, un, pamatojoties uz
iegltajiem revizijas pieradijumiem, par to, vai pastdv biitiska nenoteiktiba attiectba uz notikumiem vai
apstakliem, kas var radit nozimigas Saubas par Sabiedribas sp&ju turpinat darbibu. Ja més secinam, ka biitiska
nenoteiktiba pastav, revidentu zinojuma tiek versta uzmaniba uz finan3u parskata sniegto informaciju par $iem
apstakliem, vai, ja $ada informacija nav sniegta, més sniedzam modificétu atzinumu. Miisu secindjumi ir
pamatoti ar revizijas pieradijumiem, kas iegiiti Iidz revidentu zinojuma datumam. Tomér nakotnes notikumu
vai apstaklu ietekmé Sabiedriba savu darbibu var partraukt;

® izvertgjam visparéju finansu parskata struktiiru un saturu, ieskaitot atklato informaciju un skaidrojumus
pielikuma, un to, vai finan3u parskats patiesi atspogulo parskata pamata esoSos darfjumus un notikumus.
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Annex 5 — List of Collaterals

NO | COLLATERAL JURISDICTION | OWNER (PLEDGOR) RANK
1. | Immovable property “Ritvari”, LV Sabiedriba ar ierobezZotu 3.
Stopini, Rumbula, Stopinu district, atbildibu "SAKRET"

cadastral No. 80960090050

2. | Immovable property “Ritvari-2” LV Sabiedriba ar ierobezZotu 3.
Stopini, Stopinu district, cadastral atbildibu “SAKRET”
No. 80960090088

3. | Immovable property “Ritvari-2” LV Sabiedriba ar ierobeZotu 3.
Stopini, Rumbula, Stopinu district, atbildtbu "SAKRET"
cadastral No. 80965090009

4. | Immovable property “Ritvari”, LV Sabiedriba ar ierobeZotu 3.
Rumbula, Stopinu district, atbildtbu "SAKRET"
cadastral No. 80965090002

5. | Immovable Property SAKRETI, Mdo | EE osalhing Sakret (registration 3.
Village, Paide rural municipality, number 11196147)
Jarva Country, Estonia adn reg, No.
2157636 and cadastral No.
56502:002:0153

6. | Land plot, area 6.4802 ha, unique LT UAB "SAKRET LT", legal entity 3.
No. 4400-0943-8153, address at code 300598522
Biochemiku street 12 Kedainiai.

7 Real Estate — Building (construction | LT UAB "SAKRET LT", legal entity 3.
or engineering installation), unique code 300598522
number 4400-1578-3707, 4400-
1593-0986, 4400-1599-4268, 4400-
1593-1104, 4400-1593-1110;4400-
1598-8582, 4400-1612-4537, 4400-
1581-0490, 4400-1581-0525, 4400-
1598-8571, Kedainai, cadastral
number of the land plot on which
the building is situated
533300300042
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8. | Commercial pledge on SIA SAKRET LV SIA "SAKRET PLUS"
PLUS property as an aggregation on
property
9. | Commercial pledge on SAKRET LV Akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET
HOLDINGS AS property as an HOLDINGS"
aggregation of property
10. | Commercial pledge on SIA LV Sabiedriba ar ierobezZotu
“SAKRET” property as an atbildibu "SAKRET"
aggregation of property
11. | Commercial pledge on osaiihing EE osalihing Sakret (registration
SAKRET property as an aggregation number 11196147)
of property
12. | Commercial pledge on SAKRET LT LT UAB "SAKRET LT", legal entity
UAB property as an aggregation of code 300598522
property
13. | SAKRET LT UAB, reg. No. LT Akciju sabiedriba SAKRET
300598522 , shares HOLDINGS — 100 %, 49370 units
14. | Osalhing SAKRET, reg. No. EE Sakret Holdings JS (LV
11196147, shares registration number
40103251030) — 100%
15. | SIA “SAKRET PLUS”, reg. No. LV Akciju sabiedriba “SAKRET
40003749392, shares HOLDINGS” —90% , 128052
shares
16. | Akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET LV Sabiedriba ar ierobeZotu
HOLDINGS", reg. No. 40103251030, atbildibu “PARVALDIBAS
shares SISTEMAS” (reg No.
42103085387) — 100%
17. | SIA “SAKRET” shares, reg. No. LV Akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET
40003622109, shares HOLDINGS" — 100%
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AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” (Latvia)
Reg. No: 40103251030
LEI: 8945008AJU1UU6D18269

Terms of the Notes Issue

Type of Security: | Secured Notes
Nominal: | EUR 1,000
Nominal value of the issue: | EUR 3,790,000
Annual coupon rate: | 9.00%
Maturity: | 30 August 2024

Arranger:

&
-----
------

.. BlueOrange

www.blueorangebank.com

8 August 2019

These Terms of the Note Issue do not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the
Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in
such jurisdiction.
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Agent

Arranger

Business Day

Collateral (Collaterals)
Collateral Agent

Collateral Agent Agreement

Collateral Agreements

Collateral Provider
Coupon

Custodian

EUR
FCMC

First Settlement Date (Issue
Date)

Group or Sakret Group

Interest calculation period
ISIN

Issuer or Sakret Holdings
Legal acts

Majority Noteholders

Minimum Settlement Unit

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Terms and abbreviations used

A person authorized to represent the Issuer and to perform certain
tasks

AS BlueOrange Bank (registration number: 40003551060, legal
address: SmilSu iela 6, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia). Arranger acts as an
issuer agent for the interpretation of Nasdag CSD

Business Day is the day when the Nasdaqg CSD system is open and
operational

Pledges and mortgages registered over the assets of the Collateral
Providers listed in Annex 5 to the Terms of the Issues and securing
performance of the Secured Obligations

SIA Primus Legal, a limited liability company registered under the
laws of the Republic of Latvia, company registration number
40103596993, address Sporta iela 11, Riga, LV- 1013, Latvia

Agreement between the Issuer and the Collateral Agent,
regulating the role of the Collateral Agent in respect of the Notes
and otherwise under these Terms of the Issue, to be signed on 8
August 2019 in the form and with the substance substantially in
accordance with Appendix 4

Pledge and mortgage agreements concluded between the
Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent establishing pledge
rights and mortgages over the property (assets) of the Collateral
Provider

Any person listed in column “Owner (Pledgor)” of Annex 5 to the
Terms of the Issue

Interest on Notes calculated in accordance with the Section 4.2.7.
“Coupon payments”

Credit institution or investment brokerage company that has
obtained the FCMC license or is entitled to do business and to keep
securities in accordance with its country of registration laws

Euro (single currency of the member states of the European
Monetary System)

Financial and Capital Market Commission

The date when interest on the Notes start to accrue and is
30 August 2019

Issuer and its subsidiaries

The period of time between the First Settlement Date and the date
of the first payment or between two Coupon payment dates

International Securities ldentification Number, which will be
allocated to Notes by Nasdag CSD

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” (registration number: 40103251030, legal
entity identifier: 8945008AJU1UU6D18269, legal address:
“Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121)

All legal acts including FCMC, Nasdag Riga and Nasdaq CSD
regulations, which are in force in Latvia at the time of the Notes
issue, as well as prior to the maturity date of the Notes

The Noteholders holding over 51% (fifty-one per cent) of all
outstanding Notes at the relevant time

The minimum amount which can be held/traded, which is equal
nominal
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Nasdaq Riga

Nominal
Note

Noteholder

Parallel Debt
Potential Noteholder
Secured Obligations

Settlement Unit Multiple

Terms of the Issue

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Nasdaq CSD SE (registration number: 40003242879, legal address
Valnu iela 1, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia)

AS “Nasdaq Riga” (registration number: 40003167049, legal
address: Vanu iela 1, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia)

Face value of a Note

Debt security that is issued by the Issuer according to the Terms of
the Issue

Private person or legal entity that is an owner of one or more
Notes and has a claim against the Issuer as stipulated by the Terms
of the Issue and applicable legal acts

A payment undertaking and the obligations and liabilities resulting
from it of the Issuer towards the Collateral Agent set forth in
Section 4.2.5. of the Terms of the Issue

A private person or legal entity that has, according to the terms
stated in the Terms of the Issue, expressed interest or is planning
to purchase for its own account one or more Notes

All obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Notes, including but
not limited to the obligation to redeem the Notes and pay interest
thereon, and including the Parallel Debt

Multiple that defines that the settlement quantity or nominal must
be a multiple of the defined value, which is equal nominal

This document, which entitles the Issuer to execute the Issue and
the initial offering of the Notes
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Summary

AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” Terms of the Notes Issue

Part A. Introduction and Warnings

Element and Request for
the Provision of

Information

Information
Al Warning  to e This summary should be read as introduction to the Terms of the
investors Issue;

e Any decision to invest in the securities should be based on
consideration of the Terms of the Issue as a whole by the Potential
Noteholder;

e Where a claim relating to the information contained in the Terms
of the lIssue is brought before a court, the plaintiff Potential
Noteholder might, under the national legislation of the Member
States, have to bear the costs of translating the Terms of the Issue
before the legal proceedings are initiated; and

e  Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled the
summary including any translation thereof, but only if the
summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read
together with the other parts of the Terms of the Issue, key
information in order to aid Potential Noteholders when
considering whether to invest in such securities.

Part B. Issuer and any Guarantor

B.1 Legal name and | The Issuer’s legal name is akciju sabiedriba "SAKRET HOLDINGS".
commercial name
of the Issuer

B.2 The domicile and | Country of location: Republic of Latvia.
legal form of the | Legal form: joint-stock company, legal status — legal person.

Issuer, the | Date and place of registration: in the Commercial Register of the Republic
legislation under | of Latvia on 30 September 2009
which the Issuer | Registration number: 40103251030
operates and its | Legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121
country of | The company’s country of foundation is the Republic of Latvia.
incorporation
The main regulatory enactments which regulate Issuer’s activities are

e  The Commercial Law of the Republic of Latvia;

e Labour Code;

e  Construction law.

B.3 A description of, | Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the
and key factors | Sakret Group. The main area of Sakret Group activity is production of dry
relating to, the | mixes and ready-made liquid mixes for construction, such as masonry
nature of the | cement, plastering, and concrete.

Issuer’s  current
operations and its
principal activities

B.4a | A description of | At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no
the most | information at its disposal regarding any recent tendencies that have
significant recent | negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material
trends  affecting | production industry.
the Issuer and the
industries in which
it operates

B.4b | A description of | At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no
any known trends | information at its disposal regarding any identified tendencies that have
affecting the | negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material
Issuer and the | production industry.
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industries in which
it operates

B.5

A description of
the group and the
Issuer’'s  position
within the group

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer is a holding
company and holds interest in four subsidiaries.

B.6

Main shareholders
of the Issuer

The only shareholder of AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” is a company SIA
“PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS”, with registration number 42103085387 and
legal address “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121.

Issuer’s share capital is EUR 35,000 which consists of 25,000 ordinary
shares, each of them with a nominal value of EUR 1.40. SIA “PARVALDIBAS
SISTEMAS” holds all 25,000 shares of the Issuer.

SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” share capital is EUR 8,000 which consists of
8,000 ordinary shares, each of them with a nominal value of EUR 1.00.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the current structure of
SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” shareholders is as follows:

% of the total
number
85.300%
10.125%
4.575%
100%

Number of
shares
Maris Kelpis (120561-10558) 6,824
llgvars Belinskis (061060-10547) 810
Private individuals 366
Total: 8,000

Name, surname/ Legal name

The beneficiary of the Issuer, controlling the Issuer, is chairman of the
board, Maris Kelpis.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no
information at its disposal regarding any agreements, the fulfilment of
which might cause changes in the Issuer’s control.

B.7

Selected historical
key financial
information

Issuer’s selected consolidated financial figures are as follows:

Income statement (EUR):

2018
2015 2016 2017 (unaudited)
Revenue 19 146 596 17 648 223 19298 618 21265 701
Cost of goods sold 14 414 231 13220742 14 649 323 15 872 424
Gross profit 4732365 4427 481 4649 295 5393277
Cost of sales 2582205 2544522 2764948 2799993
Administration costs 1030176 982 097 1048 794 1470121
Other operating income 49 005 139523 21767 48 116
Other operating expenses 116 438 56 821 87570 103170
Interest income 1302 1284 1552 1248
Interest expense 861 803 878922 976 775 652772
Profit before tax 192050 105926 (205 473) 416 585
Income tax 70369 79 557 15159 49 230
Deferred tax 2734 - - -
Net profit for the reporting year 118 947 26 369 (220 632) 367 355
Balance sheet (EUR):
31.12.2018

31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 (unaudited)

Non-current assets:
Intangible assets:

Intangible assets 177 688 317129 411872 446 236
TOTAL: 177 688 317 129 411 872 446 236
Plant and property 9717694 9229525 8780792 8391711
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Machinery 3300286 2925925 2537216 2126376
Other fixed assets 75431 71068 99 582 109 805
Prepayments for fixed assets 8000 4296 6529

TOTAL: 13101411 12230814 11424119 10627892
Non-current financial assets:

Other long-term debtors 20 880 13926 13918 34113
Other financial assets 28 28 - -
TOTAL: 20908 13954 13918 34113

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 13300007 12561897 11849909 11108241

Current assets:

Inventory:

Raw materials 1406227 1565903 1367758 1380966
Ready-made products 1450 840 942 702 896 466 899109
Prepayments for inventory 12 580 6319 27 670 7006

TOTAL: 2869647 2514924 2291894 2287081

Accounts receivable:

Receivables from clients and suppliers 1940896 1953264 2515993 2717539
Other receivables 128121 159127 142318 149858
Next period expenses 27388 33776 36392 47356
Short-term loans to shareholders 35572 35572 35572 35572

TOTAL: 2131977 2181739 2730275 2950325

Cash and cash equivalents: 489172 397591 306 063 342277
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS: 5490796 5094254 5328232 5579683

TOTALASSETS: 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924

Owners’ Equity:

Fixed capital 35000 35000 35000 35000
Denomination reserve 572 572 572 572
Reorganisation reserve (8491 750) (8491750) (8491750) (8491 750)
Currency exchange rate revaluation reserve 24 899 24 899 24 899 24 899
Retained earnings 49 012 143 870 148 327 (90 811)
Profit for the year 89 244 4 457 (239 138) 349 876

TOTAL:  (8293023) (8282952) (8522090) (8172214)
Owners' Equity attributable to the members of
the parent company:

Minority shareholder participation 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL: 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL EQUITY: (8156 564) (8124581) (8345213) (7977858)
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Debt from credit institutions 19140971 17341139 16641137 -
Other liabilities 167 093 167093 167093 167 093
Liabilities of related parties 896 532 767 932 757 532 644132
Financial leasing 33085 - - -
Deferred tax asset 5713 - - -

TOTAL: 20243394 18276164 17565762 811225
Short-term liabilities:

Debt from credit institutions 2547579 2799999 1700000 17641137
Other liabilities 500 145 654835 1170582 1384137
Financial leasing 53876 37 545 37545 -
Pre-payments from buyers 11851 222099 118 865 38127
Debts to suppliers and contractors 1550063 1957165 3005926 2976635
Liabilities of related parties 804 740 624 844 421535 469 324
Taxes and social security payments 360554 520983 325638 191 555
Other creditors 136 658 98 845 139133 130153
Accrued liabilities 689 615 559250 1009 365 994 486
Unpaid dividends for minority shareholders 48 892 29003 29003 29 003

TOTAL: 6703973 7504568 7957592 23854557
TOTAL LIABILITIES: 26947367 25780732 25523354 24665782
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924

The Issuer’s financial auditor of the last audited annual report is SIA
“Deloitte Audits Latvia” (registration number: 40003606960, legal address:
Grédu iela 4a, Riga, Latvia, LV-1019).
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Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior
financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to refinance current liabilities from
credit institutions.

After the refinancing, due to the discount granted by current credit
institution, the consolidated equity of the Sakret group will increase.
Together with the shareholders contribution in amount of EUR 1,015,000,
the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to
participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and
positively affecting the financial standing of the Issuer.

The Issuer is unaware of any other factors, claims, obligations, or events
which would negatively affect the financial situation or performance of the
Issuer in future.

B.8 Selected pro | Issuer does not provide pro forma financial information.
forma financial
information

B.9 Profit forecast or | The profit/loss forecast has not been carried out.
evaluation

B.10 | Objections in the | The audit report for financial statements for 2016 contained no objections.
financial The audit report for financial statements for 2017 contained one objection,
information of the | regarding significant uncertainty about the company's ability to continue as
audit report a going concern.

B.11 | Issuer’s equity The last audited equity of the Issuer is negative EUR (8,345,213).

B.12 | Forecasts The forecasts regarding the Issuer contain no crucial negative changes
regarding the | after the publication of the last audited financial statements.

Issuer

B.13 | A description of | Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior
any recent events | financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to refinance current liabilities from
particular to the | credit institutions.

Issuer which are to | After the refinancing, due to the discount granted by current credit
a material extent | institution, the consolidated equity of the Sakret group will increase.
relevant to the | Together with the shareholders contribution in amount of EUR 1,015,000,
evaluation of the | the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to
Issuer’s solvency participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and
positively affecting the financial standing and solvency of the Issuer.
No other events related to the Issuer, which are crucial for preventing
Issuer's insolvency, have been established.

B.14 | Issuer’s Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the
dependency Sakret Group, therefore the insolvency of Issuer is directly dependent on

operational subsidiaries and their financial results.

B.15 | Description of the | Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the
Issuer’s  principal | Sakret Group. The main area of Sakret Group activity is production of dry
activities mixes and ready-made liquid mixes for construction, such as masonry

cement, plastering, and concrete.

B.16 | Control over the | The beneficiary of the Issuer, controlling the Issuer, is chairman of the
Issuer board, Maris Kelpis.

B.17 | Credit ratings | There is no credit rating assigned neither to the Issuer nor to the Notes
assigned to the | issue.

Issuer or its debt
securities
B.18 —B.50 Not applicable.

Part C. Securities
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C1

Type and category
of securities, ISIN

Notes issue ISIN (International Security Identification Number) will be
allocated by Nasdaqg CSD.

C.2

Currency of the
issue of securities

Currency of the Notes issue is euro (EUR).

C3-C4

Not applicable.

C5

Restrictions for
free transferability
of securities

The Notes are freely transferable securities and can be pledged. However,
the Notes cannot be offered, sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such
countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in such circumstances in which it
would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under
the laws of the Republic of Latvia and the United States of America.

C6-C7

Not applicable.

C.8,
C.9

Rights arising from
the Notes

Noteholders have a right to receive Coupon and Nominal payments,
exercise other rights as stipulated in the Terms of the Issue.

The Coupon rate is 9.0% (nine per cent) per annum. Coupon payments are
made once per quarter starting from 30 November 2019. The Issuer will
withhold taxes according with applicable laws in the Republic of Latvia.

The maturity date of Notes is 30 August 2024, Nominal amount is repaid as
a lump sum on the maturity date.

The Issuer can carry out full early redemption (call option), on 30 August
2021 by paying 90% for the Nominal amount, or on 30 August 2022 by
paying 95% for the Nominal amount or on 30 August 2023 by paying 100%
for the Nominal amount If the Issuer takes decision on the early redemption
of Notes, the Issuer shall notify Noteholders at least 20 (twenty) Business
Days prior to the redemption date of Notes.

Each Noteholder has a right to demand full early redemption (put option)
on 30 August 2023 at 90% for the Nominal amount. In order to exercise the
put option the Noteholders have to submit an application to the Issuer or
to its appointed agent not later than 40 (forty) Business Days prior the put
option date.

The Notes are secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the
Collateral Agent Agreement executed between the Issuer and the Collateral
Agent and the Collateral Agreements executed between the Collateral
Agent and Sakret Group companies.

Ranking of the Collaterals securing the Secured Obligations is in detail
described in Annex 5 to the Terms of the Issue.

Collateral Agent holds the Collateral for the benefit of the Noteholders and
in its actions regarding the disposal of its rights as the pledgee and
mortgagee follows the instructions of the Noteholders according to the
procedures described in Section 5.4 of the Terms of the Issue.

Any changes to the Collaterals established on the basis of the Terms of the
Issue and the Collateral Agreements, as well as registration of other (next
ranking) pledges or mortgages over the assets of the Collateral Providers is
subject to receipt of prior consent from the Majority Noteholders. Any
exceptions are allowed only according to the mandatory provisions of the
applicable laws.

C.10

Interest payment
of securities based
on derived
financial
instruments

Not applicable. There is no derivative component embedded in the terms
of the Notes.
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C.11 | Inclusion of Notes | The Issuer plans to include Notes on the alternative market Nasdaq First
in the regulated | North.
market

C.12 | Minimum The Nominal value of one Note is EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro).
denomination of
the issue
C.13-C.22 Not applicable.

Part D. Risks

D.1, | Key information | When making an investment in Notes, the Noteholder undertakes certain

D.2 on the key risks | financial risks. The main risk factors that influence the Issuer are changes in
that are specific to | regulatory enactments and policies, macroeconomics risk, construction
the Issuer or its | industry risk, competition risk, production risk, relations with key
industry customers, credit risk of clients, financial risk, refinancing risk, dependence

on future employees, operational risk and legal proceeding and risk of
other claims.

D.3 Key information | When investing funds in Notes, investors undertake the following risks
on the key risks | related to debt securities: Collateral risk, Notes repayment risk, Notes early
that specific to the | repayment risk, delisting risk, liquidity risk, price risk and tax risk.
securities

D.4-D.6 Not applicable.
Part E. Offer

E.1-E.2a Not applicable.

E.2b | Reasons for the | Funds that are raised as a result of the Notes issue will be used in
offer and use of | refinancing of current loan liabilities of the Issuer and its subsidiaries.
proceeds  when
different from
making profit
and/or  hedging
certain risks

E3 A description of | Not applicable.
the terms and
conditions of the
offer

E.4 A description of | AS BlueOrange Bank (the Arranger) is organizing the Notes issue and may
any interest that is | have other business transactions with the Issuer.
material to the
issue/offer
including
conflicting
interests

E5—-E.6 Not applicable.

E.7 Estimated All the expenses related to the acquisition and custody of Notes are borne
expenses charged | by an investor in compliance with the price-list of a credit institution or
to the investor by | investment service provider, through which the investor purchases and
the issuer or the | keeps Notes. The Issuer is not obliged to compensate for expenses incurred
offeror by the investor.

The investor may have additional tax payment obligations related to Notes
depending on the investor’s country of residence. The Issuer will deduct
taxes from Coupon payments in compliance with the applicable legal acts
of the Republic of Latvia.

10
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2. Risk Factors

2.1 Important note

The risks indicated in this section may reduce Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations and cause its insolvency in the
worst-case scenario.

Notes are secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agreements executed between
the Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent.

This section may not feature all the potential risks, which may affect the Issuer.
2.2. Changes in regulatory enactments and policies

The Issuer carries out its production activity in Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania and most of the risks, which affect it,
are related to the general economic situation in all three Baltic countries and regulatory enactments adopted by
each country.

The Issuer is headquartered in Latvia and has manufacturing plants in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia via local
subsidiaries, thus every subsidiary operates under the laws of the respective country and any significant changes
in existing regulatory enactments or implementation of new regulations governing corporate taxation,
employees’ remuneration, natural resources taxation and others might negatively affect the business and
solvency of the particular subsidiary and Sakret Group as a whole.

2.3. Macroeconomics risk

The Issuer is engaged in production of high-end quality dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures and
construction chemicals in Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia.

In 2018, 39% of the Sakret Group revenue was generated by building material sales in Latvia, 29% in Lithuania
and 25% in Estonia. Remaining was generated by sales of services. The economic situation in all Baltic countries
are assessed as stable which is supported by both macroeconomic data, such as GDP and employment indicators.
Latvia and Lithuania currently have an A credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlooks. Estonia
currently has an AA- credit rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook.

Financial results of Sakret Group depends on the stable macroeconomic situation in each of the Baltic countries.
2.4. Construction industry risk

The demand for dry and read-made liquid construction mixtures that Sakret Group produces is directly linked to
the state of construction industry in Baltic countries.

Following a rapid growth over the period of 2003 — 2008, the construction industry in the Baltics went into a nose-
dive, with 2010 falling back to the level of 2002. Further years brought approximately 75% of cumulative growth
until the industry faced another fall in 2016.

Latvia is expected to face the most substantial growth of all three Baltic countries over the next couple of years,
evening out at a GDP growth of approx. 4%. Real estate prices have been increasing in line with domestic income
and the current low interest environment expand consumer capabilities in housing investments. In Estonia,
construction confidence index has currently reached its post-crisis-high level, expecting further sector growth.

Despite positive outlook on construction sector in Baltic countries, the decline of activity in the industry may
adversely affect the Sakret Group’s business and financial condition.

2.5. Competition risk

Sakret Group direct competitors across all Baltic countries are “Knauf”, “Ceresit”, “Saint-Gobain”, and "Baumit".
All Sakret's direct competitors are international companies and have one or more factories in Latvia, Lithuania
and Estonia. In contrast to its competitors, Sakret Group is working exclusively for the Baltic market and is
headquartered in the Baltics.

The Issuer may have difficulties to compete with these competitors, thus to remain competitive and to protect
profit margins, Issuer must offer new products that keep pace with industrial and technological developments
and must respond to customer requirements on a timely basis. New technologies, changing commercial

11
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circumstances (for example, consolidation within a relevant sector), existing competitors (including those with a
longer operating history, greater resources and/or broader range of products) and new entrants to the markets
in which Issuer currently operates or markets in which Sakret Group might target for expansion may adversely
affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

2.6. Production risk

Sakret Group operates 4 production plants in Riga (Latvia), Kedainai (Lithuania) and Paide (Estonia), thus any
technological issues, human errors, incorrect planning or other issues directly connected with production
processes might result in stoppage of production output of plants, which will negatively affect the financial results
of the Sakret Group.

Group is operating its production plants since 2004 and its employees have an extensive experience in managing
production processes, thus any potential production risks are monitored and controlled.

2.7. Relations with key customers

Over the past years, the Issuer has maintained a moderate concentration among its customer base. Top3 clients
of the Issuer generate 39% of company’s revenue as of 2018 and Top5 clients generate 60% of company's
revenue, and this concentration has been stable over recent years. The remainder of Issuer’s clients contribute
less than 10% to revenue each. Sakret Group’s clients are all the largest DIY chains in the Baltics, therefore, the
concentration is directly linked with DIY market concentration. The loss of any of key customers and Issuer’s
inability to find adequate alternative customers on a timely basis, or at all, on commercially acceptable terms,
could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

2.8. Credit risk of clients

Issuer’s customers have a period of time, generally 45 to 90 days after the date of invoice, depending on the type
of customer, in which to effect payment. As a result, Issuer is subject to the risk that its customers will not pay or
will delay the payment for the products they purchased. This credit exposure risk may increase due to liquidity or
solvency issues experienced by Issuer’s customers, for example, as a result of an economic downturn or an
adverse change in their business. If Issuer is unable to collect payment for amounts invoiced from its customers,
it could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Issuer assigns credit to customers according to internal credit policy, which is developed, applying thorough
internal analysis of Issuer’s customers and seeking to diversify and limit its credit risk exposure.

2.9. Financial risk

Historically, Sakret Group made expansion investments co-financed by Luminor (then DNB bank), including loans
for construction of the factories in Lithuania (total investment EUR 9.50 million) and Estonia (total investment
EUR 6.70 million). Because of the financial crisis of 2008-2009 and geopolitical tensions with Russia, Sakret’s core
markets contracted and return on the loans was negatively affected. In 2013, a restructuring was done, forming
a holding structure and renegotiating the repayment schedule, Sakret returned to positive cashflow.

After the merger of DNB and Nordea, Luminor revaluated its existing strategy and has decided to accept
refinancing of Sakret Group loan at a discount — the current repayment schedule still is too long for the bank and
the internal procedures do not allow to write-off part of the loan and keep Sakret as a client.

Due to the discount granted by Luminor, the consolidated equity of the Sakret Group will increase. Together with
the shareholders contribution in amount of EUR 1m, the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret
Group to participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and positively affecting the financial
standing and solvency of the Issuer.

After the refinancing of Luminor loan, BlueOrange Bank will provide EUR 4 million long-term loan, EUR 2 million
overdraft facility, EUR 1.7 million credit line and EUR 3.8 million will be raised via Notes Issue.

Despite the Issuer’s track record with credit institutions, there is a possibility that sources of financing may not be
available in the amount required for the Issuer, or their conditions may be too unfavorable, which may
significantly affect Issuer’s ability to ensure sufficient financing for the company’s growth.

12
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2.10.  Refinancing risk

Principal of Notes will be repaid as a lump sum at maturity date, therefore the Issuer has increased refinancing
risk. The Issuer will seek to refinance Notes issue or look for other funding sources in order to decrease refinancing
risk, but if Notes will not be refinanced before maturity date, as per the management estimates, the Issuer should
be able to cover principal of Notes from Group’s own cash flow. In case of additional capital investments would
be required during the duration of Notes, which would decrease cash available for repayment of Notes at the
maturity, Issuer plans to refinance part of the Notes lump sum using long-term liabilities, which will be significantly
decreased by 2022, based on the repayment schedule.

2.11.  Dependence on future employees

In the future, the Issuer’s activities will be affected by its ability to attract, preserve, and motivate highly qualified
and experienced personnel. There is competition for personnel with the relevant skills and experience in Baltic
countries and it is comparatively high; however, the Issuer has successful experience in the field of personnel
management, offering education, professional growth, and development possibilities, as well as different
motivation programs to the employees.

As of 2018, the Issuer’s total number of employees was 132 persons. The majority of workers are involved in
manufacturing processes.

2.12.  Operational risks

Operational risk is a possibility of experiencing losses due to insufficient or unsuccessful inner processes,
personnel management, systems, or external circumstances. As of 2018, the number of Group’s employees
reached 132 persons; therefore, thorough personnel selection is carried out, accurate descriptions of job duties
are compiled, division of duties is coordinated, constant investments are made within the IT system, which allows
the Issuer to reduce operational risks.

2.13.  Legal proceeding and risk of other claims

The Issuer may be adversely affected by contractual claims, complaints and legal proceedings arising from
relationships with partners, customers, competitors or regulatory authorities, as well as negative publicity such
proceedings might cause. Any such legal proceedings, complaints, contractual claims or negative publicity may
materially affect the operational activities, financial situation and business results of the Issuer.

2.14.  Risks related to Notes
2.14.1. Collateral risk
Notes will be secured with Collaterals that will be subject to ranking described in Annex 5.

Noteholders should be aware that since the Estonian subsidiary of the Issuer is giving upstream collaterals, such
collaterals could be contested under Estonian law in a certain case. As per the provisions of Estonian Commercial
Code, an OU (osatihing)-type company shall not amongst others guarantee a loan taken by its shareholder whose
share represents more than 5 per cent of its share capital. However, the Estonian law stipulates that this
prohibition does not apply to guaranteeing or securing a loan taken by the parent if grant of guarantee or
security/collateral does not harm the financial status of the company or the interests of its creditors.

If the Issuer fails to make the Coupon and / or Nominal payments in a timely manner, the Collateral Agent, acting
in the interest of the Noteholders, will commence the Collateral enforcement proceedings according to the
procedures described in Section 5.4. of the Terms of the Issue.

2.14.2. Notes repayment risk

Notes will be secured with Collaterals established in accordance with the Collateral Agreements executed
between the Collateral Providers and the Collateral Agent. In case of Issuer’s insolvency, Noteholders have the
same right to receive their investment as other creditors of the relevant group in accordance with applicable
regulatory enactments.

2.14.3. Notes early repayment risk

Issuer has a call option, which means, that at certain dates during the term of Notes the Issuer may decide to
execute an early repayment of Notes by paying back the principal at the certain price for the Nominal amount to
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the Noteholders. Noteholders should take into account that Notes early redemption price may be lower than
Notes price on the secondary market.

2.14.4. Delisting risk

After Notes registration the Issuer plans to request admission to trading of the Notes on First North, which is
alternative market operated by Nasdaq Riga. There is a risk, that Nasdaqg Riga would not accept Notes to be
admitted for trading on First North or order to delist Notes from the First North before the maturity after the
admission to trading took place, due to changes in FCMC opinion and Legal acts, including Nasdag Riga
regulations.

2.14.5. Liquidity risk

Neither the Issuer, nor any other person guarantees the minimum liquidity of Notes. Noteholders should take
into account that there may be difficulties in selling Notes in the secondary market.

2.14.6. Price risk

Notes will be repaid for their Nominal Value at the maturity, yet the price in the secondary market may change
significantly. Neither the Issuer, nor any other person undertakes to maintain a certain price level of Notes.

2.14.7. Taxrisk

Tax rates and tax payment procedure applicable at the moment of purchase of Notes to the tax residents, non-
residents of Latvia, and residents of other countries may change. The Issuer will not compensate for the increase
in taxes to Noteholders, therefore Noteholders may receive smaller payments related to Notes.
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3.

3:1.

Party responsible for the Terms of the Issue

Party responsible for the Terms of the Issue

Akciju Sabiedriba “SAKRET HOLDINGS”

Registration number: 40103251030

Legal entity identifier: 8945008AJU1UU6D18269

Legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121

3.2.

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer

The Issuer shall, in accordance with these Terms of the Issue, issue Notes and perform the obligations arising
from the Notes to the Noteholders.

The

Issuer shall be liable to the Noteholders for due and complete fulfilment of its obligations deriving from the

Notes with Callateral.

The

3.3,

The

Issuer gives the following warranties to the Noteholders:

(a) All the Issuer’s obligations assumed under this issue of the Notes are valid and legally binding to the
Issuer and performance of these obligations is not contrary to the Issuer’s Articles of Association, laws
or any agreement concluded by the Issuer;

(b) The Issuer has all the rights and sufficient authorizations to issue the Notes and fulfil obligations arising
from issuing the Notes;

(c) The Issuer has performed all the formalities required for issuing the Notes and fulfilling the obligations
arising here from;

(d} Allinformation that is provided by the Issuer to the Noteholders is true, accurate, complete and correct
as at the date of presenting the respective information and is not misleading in any respect.

Assurance of the information provided in the Terms of the Issue

Issuer and its management board are responsible for the information contained in Terms of the Issue.

Hereby we, members of the board of AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS”, Maris Kelpis, Juris Grinvalds, Andis Ziedonis certify
that, by paying sufficient attention to this purpose, the information included in the Terms of the Issue is true, in
accordance with the facts, and no information which may affect its meaning is concealed therein.

Marlsr% )«éﬁs Grinvalds dis Ziedgnis J
Chair f the board Member of the board Member ofithe board
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4. Information on Notes

4.1. The use of the proceeds
The total issue size is EUR 3,790,000 (three million seven hundred ninety thousand euro).

Funds that are raised as a result of the Notes issue will be used in refinancing of current loan liabilities of the
Issuer and its subsidiaries.

4.2. Information on the offered Notes
4.2.1. General Information

The Notes are bearer and any person or entity that holds the Notes in his securities account has the right to
receive Coupon and the Nominal payments. It is planned to issue Notes with nominal value of EUR 1,000 (one
thousand euro) for one Note and total nominal value of EUR 3,790,000 (three million seven hundred ninety
thousand euro).

Notes issue ISIN (International Security Identification Number) will be allocated by Nasdag CSD.
4.2.2. Legal acts that regulate the Notes issue

The Notes issue is arranged in compliance with the Financial Instrument Market Law and other Legal acts of the
Republic of Latvia that are in force including the FCMC and the Nasdaq CSD regulations.

All disputes between Noteholders and the Issuer shall be settled in courts of the Republic of Latvia in accordance
to the Legal acts in force. Terms of the Issue are drafted and signed in English and any translations of the Terms
of the Issue into another language are unofficial and made exceptionally for the Potential Noteholders’
convenience. In case of any disputes’ settlement, interpretation of the norms of the Terms of the Issue in English
holds the priority against an interpretation in any other language.

4.2.3. Form and accounting of the Notes

The Notes are issued in dematerialized form and will be recorded in the Latvian SSS (securities settlement system
governed by Latvian law) operated by Nasdaqg CSD, which will provide the maintaining function for the Notes.
Noteholders may hold Notes through Nasdaqg CSD participants participating in the Latvian SSS.

4.2.4. Currency of the Notes
Currency of the notes is EUR (euro).
4.2.5. Collateral of the Notes, Parallel Debt

As security for the Secured Obligations, the Collateral shall be established in favor of and on the name of the
Collateral Agent in accordance with the Collateral Agreements. Not later than on 22 November 2019, the
Collateral Agreements will be executed between the Collateral Agent and the Collateral Providers in order to
establish the Collateral (Collaterals) securing the Secured Obligations in accordance with the Terms of the Issue.

The Issuer shall ensure that the respective agreements are registered and perfected to the fullest extent required
by the applicable law of the place of registration of the respective Collateral not later than on 22 November 2019.
Notwithstanding the above, the Collaterals indicated in Annex 5 as having the second, third or fourth ranking in
any case shall be registered only after the collaterals having the first, second and/or third rank are duly registered.

For the purpose of ensuring and preserving the enforceability of the Collateral, the Issuer irrevocably and
unconditionally undertakes to pay to the Collateral Agent, as creditor in its own right and not as representative of
the Noteholders and as a joint or solidary creditor together with the Noteholders, sums equal to and in the
currency of the total of each amount payable by the Issuer to each of the Noteholders (whether present or future
and whether actual or contingent) under the Terms of the Issue as and when the amount falls due for payment
under the Terms of the Issue. For the purpose of clarification, the Parallel Debt will become due and payable at
the same time and to the same extent as any of the Secured Obligations become due and payable. The conditions
applicable to the Parallel Debt are in further detail described in the Annex 4 to the Terms of the Issue (please refer
to Section 2 of the Collateral Agent Agreement).
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4.2.6. Rights and restrictions connected with the Notes issue

Any Noteholder has the right to receive Coupon and Nominal payments in accordance with the Section 4.2.7.
“Coupon payments” and 4.2.8. “Procedure of Notes repayment”, as well as exercise other rights fixed in the Terms
of the Issue and legislation of the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer has the rights to purchase Notes on the secondary market directly from Noteholders. Notes that are
purchased by the Issuer are held in Issuer’s financial instruments' custody account and the Issuer has the rights
to sell purchased Notes to Potential Noteholders and other Noteholders. The Issuer cannot cancel the purchased
Notes held in the Issuer’s financial instruments' custody account, therefore decreasing the size of Notes issue.

Notes owned by the Issuer and / or its affiliated persons (subsidiaries, shareholders, management or employees)
are not eligible to participate in the voting in accordance with Section 5.5. “Procedure for applying of the waiver”.

4.2.7. Coupon payments
The Coupon rate for the Notes is 9% (nine per cent) per annum and is fixed until the maturity of the Notes.

Coupon payments are made once per quarter starting from 30 November 2019. The first Coupon payment will be
made on 30 November 2019 and the last Coupon payment will be made on 30 August 2024.

The Coupon record date is the 5th (fifth) Business Day prior to the Coupon payment day. At the end of the Coupon
record date Noteholders list, who will be eligible for the Coupon payments, will be fixed. Coupon payment shall
be made to the Noteholders, as per Noteholders list, on each Coupon payment date for the preceding Coupon
period.

The Issuer pays the Coupon through the intermediary of Nasdag CSD and in accordance with applicable Nasdaq
CSD regulations, which regulate the procedure for paying income from debt securities. Nasdaqg CSD regulations
applicable on the day of preparation of the Terms of the Issue are Nasdaq CSD Rulebook and Corporate Action
Service description.

If the Coupon payment date is a holiday or a festive day, the Issuer will make the relevant Coupon payment on
the first Business Day after the holiday or festive day.

Coupon payments are determined according to the following formula:
CPN=F *C /4 or CPN% = C/4, where

CPN — the amount of Coupon payment in EUR per Note;

F — Nominal value of one Note;

C—annual Coupon rate (%);

CPN% - the amount of Coupon payment % per Note.

If the Issuer has failed to make Coupon payments in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms of the
Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the payment of the Coupon not earlier than
after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment date of the relevant Coupon.

The authority performing the calculation is not required to calculate the Coupon payment, since the annual rate
of the Coupon for the relevant period is fixed in advance.

4.2.8. Procedure of the Notes repayment

The Nominal of one Note is EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro) and the Issuer will repay Nominal amount as a lump
sum the maturity date of the Notes, which is 30 August 2024.

The Issuer will repay the Nominal amount in accordance with Nasdag CSD intermediary and applicable Nasdaq
CSD regulations. Nasdag CSD regulations applicable on the day of preparation of the Terms of the Issue are Nasdaq
CSD Rulebook and Corporate Action Service Description. The Nominal amount will be paid on the maturity date.
Noteholders eligible to receive the Nominal will be fixed at the end of the Nominal record date, which is the
previous Business Day before the maturity date.

If the maturity date is a holiday or a festive day, the Issuer will make the relevant Coupon payment and Nominal
amount payment on the first Business Day after the holiday or festive day.
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If the Issuer has failed to make Nominal amount payment in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms
of the Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the repayment of the Nominal amount
not earlier than after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment day of the Nominal amount.

4.29. Early redemption (call option)

The Issuer can carry out full early redemption (call option), on 30 August 2021 by paying 90% for the Nominal
amount, or on 30 August 2022 by paying 95% for the Nominal amount or on 30 August 2023 by paying 100% for
the Nominal amount. The Issuer can carry out call option only in full amount of total outstanding Notes.

If the Issuer takes decision on the early redemption of Notes, the Issuer shall notify Noteholders at least 20
(twenty) Business Days prior to the redemption date of Notes, with intermediation of Nasdaq CSD, or, if Notes
are included in the Nasdaq Riga, via Nasdaq Riga information system.

If the Issuer takes decision on the early redemption of Notes, the Issuer will pay redemption payment in
accordance with Nasdag CSD intermediary and applicable Nasdag CSD regulations. Nasdag CSD regulations
applicable on the day of preparation of the Terms of the Issue are Nasdag CSD Rulebook and Action Service
Description. Noteholders eligible to receive the redemption payment will be fixed at the end of the record date,
which will be the previous Business Day before the redemption payment date.

4.2.10. Early redemption (put option)

Each Noteholder has a right to demand full early redemption (put option) on 30 August 2024 at 90% for the
Nominal amount. In order to exercise the put option the Noteholders have to submit an application to the Issuer
or to its appointed agent not later than 40 (forty) Business Days prior the put option date.

In case of breach of the covenant “Not to change the control of the Issuer” as per the Section 5.5. “Covenants”
Noteholders have the rights to demand early redemption of Notes at the price of 101% (one hundred and one
per cent) for the Nominal amount, along with the accrued Coupon within 5 (five) Business Days after the Issuer
has received the notification.

Noteholders have the rights to demand early redemption of Notes (put option) in case of occurrence of the events
of default in accordance with the Section 5.2. “Event of default”.

4.2.11. Accrued interest calculation

The first Coupon starts to accrue on 30 August 2019, which is the First Settlement Date of the Notes issue. The
accrued Coupon is calculated presuming that there are 360 days in one year (day count convention - “European
30/360”). Accrued interest between Coupon payment dates shall be calculated as follows:

Al=F* C/360 * D, where

Al —accrued interest of one Note;
F —Nominal value of one Note;
C—annual Coupon rate (%);

D —the amount of days from the beginning of the Coupon accrual period according to European 30/360 day count
method.

4.2.12. Representation of the Noteholders
By submitting a subscription offer or acquiring the Notes on the secondary market, each Noteholder:

(a) expresses its consent to the appointment of the Collateral Agent to perform the obligations and exercise
the rights in connection with the Collateral as set forth in these Terms of the Issue and authorizes the
Collateral Agent to exercise the rights, powers, authorities and discretions specifically given to the
Collateral Agent under the Terms of the Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement and any Collateral
Agreement;

(b) confirms that the fact that the Collateral Agent acts under the Collateral Agent Agreement concluded
with the Issuer does not constitute any conflict with the interests of the Noteholder;

(c) agrees that the Collateral Agent has only such functions, obligations and liability as expressly set forth in
these Terms of the Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement, and that upon the performance of its
obligations and exercising of its rights in connection with the Collateral, the Collateral Agent is entitled
to act at its discretion, considering the interests of the Noteholders, and, unless specifically requested
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by the Collateral Agent, the Noteholders have no right to give any instructions to the Collateral Agent
and the Collateral Agent is under no obligation to request or follow such instructions, except for the
instructions provided under Section 5.4.;

(d) agrees that the Collateral Agent does not have any obligation, and is not be liable for not fulfilling such
obligation: (i) to take any action (including, without limitation, to commence legal proceedings,
compulsory enforcement proceedings, bankruptcy proceedings or any other proceedings) with the
purpose to satisfy any claims arising under the Terms of the Issue on the account of any assets of the
Issuer or any other Collateral Provider, except the enforcement of Collateral in accordance with the
Terms of the Issue and relevant instructions from the Majority Noteholders as stipulated in Section 5.4;
(ii) to ensure the existence, validity, enforceability or any specific feature whatsoever of the Collateral or
the assets encumbered with the Collateral or to preserve the Collateral or the assets encumbered with
the Collateral or their value or to assess any rights arising from or relating to the Collateral; (iii) to inform
the Noteholders or the Issuer about any circumstances except to the extent such obligation to provide
information is explicitly set forth in these Terms of the Issue; (iv) to provide any advice to the Noteholders
in legal, accounting, tax or other matters; (v) to verify, monitor or investigate the fulfilment of the
obligations of the Issuer or any Collateral Provider under these Terms or under the Collateral
Agreements, the correctness of representations and warranties or the adherence to covenants by the
Issuer or any Collateral Provider;

(e) agrees to pre-pay to the Collateral Agent all expenses (as detailed in the Collateral Agent Agreement) in
relation to enforcement of the Collaterals, if such are not covered by the Issuer, or to compensate any
other expenses of the Collateral Agent if so agreed by the Majority Noteholders as stipulated in Section
5.4

The Noteholders do not have any independent power to enforce the Collateral or to exercise any rights or powers
arising under the Collateral Agreements. Noteholders can exercise their rights in relation to the Collateral only
through the Collateral Agent pursuant to these Terms of the Issue (especially Section 5.4.).

Upon the performance of its obligations and exercising its rights, the Collateral Agent acts at its own discretion in
the interests and on the account of the Noteholders collectively and generally (and not of any particular
Noteholder) without having any independent interests of its own, other than deriving from these Terms of the
Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement, and without any obligation to consider any interests or rights of the
Issuer or any Collateral Provider (other than arising from the applicable law or the Collateral Agreements) and
without any right of the Issuer to give any instructions to the Collateral Agent.

The Collateral Agent is not a party to the legal relationship between the Issuer, the Collateral Providers and the
Noteholders, and is under no circumstances liable for the performance of the obligations of the Issuer or the
Collateral Providers.

Upon the performance of its obligations and exercising of its rights the Collateral Agent has the right to use the
services of third parties and to appoint third party representatives (by acquiring the prior approval of the Majority
Noteholders if such is required by the applicable law). Notwithstanding such use or appointment, the Collateral
Agent shall not be released from its responsibilities towards the Issuer and the Noteholders under the Collateral
Agent Agreement and the Collateral Agent shall be personally liable to the Issuer and the Noteholders for the
respective obligations. Furthermore, no additional fees and/or expenses shall be paid to the Collateral Agent as a
result of such appointment by the Collateral Agent except where the payment of expenses is set forth in the
Collateral Agent Agreement. The Collateral Agent may refrain from acting in accordance with the instructions of
the Majority Noteholders as stipulated in Section 5.4. until it has received such indemnification or security as it
may require for all costs, claims, losses, expenses (including but not limited to legal fees for services within Latvia
or in other jurisdictions) and liabilities which it will or may expend or incur in complying with such instructions.

At the request of the Collateral Agent, any Noteholder shall provide the Collateral Agent with any information
and/or documents required by the latter for the purposes of identification of the Noteholder and/or for the
performance of other obligations arising from these Terms of the Issue , the Collateral Agreements, the Collateral
Agent Agreement, or from the applicable law.

4.2.13. Decisions of the Issuer on the Notes issue

On 8 August 2019, the Issuer’s shareholders passed the resolution (No. 2019-3) to approve the issue of secured
debt securities (Notes) with nominal value of EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro), total nominal issue value EUR
3,790,000 (three million seven hundred ninety thousand euro), annual Coupon rate 9.00% (nine per cent) paid an
a quarterly basis and approve the terms and conditions of the Notes Issue.
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4.2.14. The First Settlement Date of the Notes issue
The First Settlement Date (Issue Date) of the Notes issue is 30 August 2019, on which the Coupon starts to accrue.
4.2.15. Restrictions on free circulation of the Notes

The Notes are freely transferable securities and can be pledged. However, the Notes cannot be offered, sold,
resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in such circumstances in which it
would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under the laws of the Republic of Latvia and
the United States of America.
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5. Special Conditions

5.1. Disclosure of information

Up to the maturity of Notes, the Issuer shall publish all the information required by covenants, rules of Nasdaq
Riga and regulatory enactments.

5.2. Event of default
The Issuer is in default if at least one of the following occurs:

e The Issuer has failed to make a Coupon payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days following
the planned payment date;

e The Issuer has failed to make a Nominal value payment in full for more than 5 (five) Business Days
following the planned payment date;

e The lssuer has violated the conditions of the Section 5.5. “Covenants”;

e The Collateral Agent has not been able to establish the Collateral in favor of and on the name of the
Collateral Agent, not later than on 22 November 2019;

e The Issuer has failed to service other liabilities in the amount of over EUR 100,000 for more than 5 (five)
Business Days;

e Insolvency proceedings have been initiated against the Issuer;
e The Issuer has submitted an application for liquidation in the relevant state authorities in Latvia.

The Noteholder can submit a written notification to the Issuer regarding that the immediate repayment deadline
has set in for the Notes owned by the relevant Noteholder, at any time after the event of default has occurred
(and as long as the event of default exists). The Issuer has to pay the Nominal value of Notes along with the
accrued Coupon and contractual penalty, in accordance with Section 5.3. “Contractual penalty”, within 5 (five)
Business Days after the receipt of the notification.

5.3. Contractual penalty

In the case of non-compliance or inadequate compliance with a payment obligation arising from the Notes, the
Noteholder in question shall be entitled to require and the Issuer shall be obliged to pay contractual penalty upon
the request of any Noteholder to all the Noteholders from the date (excluding), when the deadline has set in, to
the actual payment date (including) in the amount of 0.05% (zero point zero five per cent) per day from the
relevant outstanding amount, but total contractual penalty may not exceed 10% (ten per cent) from the relevant
outstanding amount.

If the Issuer has failed to make Coupon payments in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms of the
Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the payment of the Coupon not earlier than
after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment date of the relevant Coupon.

If the Issuer has failed to make Nominal amount payment in accordance with the deadlines specified in the Terms
of the Issue, Noteholders shall have the right to submit claims regarding the repayment of the Nominal amount
not earlier than after 5 (five) Business Days following the payment day of the Nominal amount.

5.4. Enforcement

The Collateral Agent shall take all actions that the Collateral Agent as the holder of the Collateral may reasonably
take with the purpose to enforce the Collateral according to the procedure provided for in the Collateral
Agreements in case all of the following conditions are met:
(@) any of the events of default indicated in Section 5.2. above have occurred; and
(b) the Majority Noteholders have instructed the Collateral Agent in writing to enforce the Collateral;
(c) the Majority Noteholders have agreed with the Collateral Agent on the order of payment of the fee of
the Collateral Agent in relation to enforcement of the Collaterals.
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At the enforcement of the Collateral, the Noteholders may transfer their Notes to the Collateral Agent for the
purposes of the enforcement and in such case the Collateral Agent shall be obliged to accept the Notes and
enforce the Collateral as a direct creditor under the Notes. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in these Terms of
the Issue shall oblige any Noteholder to transfer its Notes to the Collateral Agent and the Collateral Agent shall
be obliged to enforce the Collateral in relation to such Notes not transferred to the Collateral Agent on the basis
of Parallel Debt (without taking liability for enforceability of the Parallel Debt as such) in accordance with the
provisions of these Terms of the Issue.

If pursuant to the Terms of the Issue the Majority Noteholders instruct the Collateral Agent, the Collateral Agent
is obligated (subject to the other sentences in this Section) to comply with these instructions. Any such
instructions from the Majority Noteholders will be binding on all Noteholders. The Collateral Agent is not liable
for any consequences or damages that result from complying with the instructions, and the Majority Noteholders
who have given such instructions shall fully indemnify the Collateral Agent if the Collateral Agent is held liable for
this.

The Collateral Agent has the right to suspend enforcement and of its duties as Collateral Agent in general, if the
fees and/or expenses of the Collateral Agent are not paid when due by the Issuer, and the Noteholders fail to pay
such fees and/or expenses within 10 (ten) days of a respective request, or if the expenses of the Collateral Agent
that need to be borne in order to commence or continue enforcement are not prepaid by the Issuer or the
Noteholders within the same term. For the avoidance of doubt, the Noteholders shall have the right but not the
obligation to pay the Collateral Agent’s fees, costs or expenses instead of the Issuer, and in case the Noteholders
do so, the relevant Noteholders shall be deemed to have acquired the Collateral Agent’s claim against the Issuer
in the relevant part.

Proceeds from the enforcement of Collateral are applied in the following order of priority (whereas no interest
shall be added to the amounts received and due to be paid out by the Collateral Agent):

(a) first, towards payment of fees and costs, which must be paid as a result of the enforcement of the
Collateral pursuant to applicable laws (including, without limitation, notary fees, bailiff's fees, state
duties);

(b) second, towards payment of all fees, costs and expenses (including valuation costs and fees, costs and
expenses of third parties engaged in by the Collateral Agent) of the Collateral Agent payable under the
Terms of the Issue, any Collateral Agreement and the Collateral Agent Agreement;

(c) third, towards the Secured Obligations (if necessary, proportionally to the nominal values of the Notes
held by Noteholders);

(d) fourth, if any proceeds remain, they shall be returned to the Issuer.

When a decision or an expression of will by the Majority Noteholders, such a decision or expression of will must
be made at a meeting of the Noteholders, or in writing, pursuant to the order described below.

(a) Noteholders meetings may be convened by the Issuer, by the Collateral Agent, or by the Majority
Noteholders, and shall be notified at least 10 (ten) Business Days in advance by way of a notice sent in
accordance with these Terms to each Noteholder and the Collateral Agent. The notice shall include the
agenda of the meeting. If a meeting is convened by the Majority Noteholders or the Collateral Agent,
they shall send the convocation notice to the Issuer who shall forward it to the Noteholders within 2
(two) Business Days.

(b) Meetings shall take place in Riga, Latvia, on Business Days, during regular business hours, at such time
as is indicated in the notice. Meetings shall have quorum if the Noteholders present constitute Majority
Noteholders.

(c) Majority Noteholders shall mean the Noteholders holding over 51% (fifty one per cent) of all outstanding
Notes at the relevant time.

(d) Meetings of the Noteholders shall be chaired and recorded by the person appointed by the Majority
Noteholders represented at the meeting. A meeting may not adopt decisions in questions not included
in the agenda of the meeting as notified to the Noteholders, except where all Noteholders are present.
Meetings shall be held and minutes kept in English. A noteholder may be represented by any person
(including by another Noteholder) based on a written power of attorney.

(e) Minutes of the Noteholders meetings of the Noteholders must include: (i) the time and place of the
meeting; (i) the names and representatives of the Noteholders present, and the number of Notes held
by them; (iii) the resolutions voted on and the voting results, indicating which Noteholders voted “in
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(f)

5.5.

favor” and “against” the decision; (iv) signatures of all Noteholders present in the meeting. Minutes shall
be promptly sent by the Issuer to all Noteholders, regardless of whether they participated in the meeting.
Costs related to meetings of the Noteholders shall be borne by the Issuer.

Covenants

From the Issue Date of Notes to the date of repayment thereof, the Issuer and its subsidiary companies (if any)
shall undertake the following:

The Issuer and its subsidiaries shall continue business operations in the production of dry mixes and
ready-made liquid mixes;

Not to change the control of the Issuer (not to sell more than 50% of shares of the Issuer or its ultimate
holding company);

Not to commence Issuer’s liquidation and not to reduce the equity capital;
Any transactions with Related Persons shall be at market prices;

In case of investment larger than EUR 100,000 the Issuer or its subsidiaries may invest in share capital of
other companies only if the participation share is at least 51% and the Issuer or its subsidiaries retains
full control of a company;

Not to sell, present, change, rent, invest, or otherwise transfer into utilization the right to use the
trademarks owned or otherwise utilized by the Issuer and/or its subsidiary companies, except if
trademarks are sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into utilization to
the Issuer’s subsidiary company, its managing company, or any companies dependent on the managing
company, other enterprises or companies which have directly or indirectly acquired participation in the
equity capital of the Issuer or in which the Issuer has acquired direct or indirect participation (if any), or
except if trademarks are sold, presented, changed, rented, invested, or otherwise transferred into
utilization to be used outside Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania;

Not to pay out dividends, if only audited consolidated Net Debt/Equity indicator is below 3.5 and if such
dividend payout is allowed by other credit agreements;

To maintain consolidated DSCR (profit before interest payments, tax payments, depreciation and
amortization calculation against all interest, coupon and principal payments) at least 1.1%;

To maintain both consolidated Net Debt/Equity (total interest bearing liabilities minus cash against
equity) and Net Debt/EBITDA (total interest bearing liabilities minus cash against profit before interest
payments, tax payments, depreciation and amortization calculation) indicators not exceeding:

o 5.0% asof31.12.2019
o 4.5,as0f31.12.2020
o 4.0,as0f31.12.2021
o 3.5, as0f31.12.2022

*for DSCR, Net Debt/Equity and Net Debt/EBITDA calculations as of 31.12.2019, EBITDA and Equity will be adjusted
to one-off refinancing expenses

From the Issue Date, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per Latvian
accounting standards within 2 months after the reporting period;

Starting from 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish unaudited consolidated quarterly reports as per
International Financial Reporting Standards within 2 months after the reporting period;

Until 30.09.2019, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per Latvian accounting
standards for the year 2018;

Until 31.05.2020, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International
Financial Reporting Standards for the year 2019 audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte, PwC or KPMG). The
respective auditor’s opinion shall be unqualified;
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e  Starting from 01.01.2021, to prepare and publish audited consolidated annual report as per International
Financial Reporting Standards within 4 months after the reporting period audited by Big4 (EY, Deloitte,
PwC or KPMG). The respective auditor’s opinions shall be unqualified;

e  Proof of compliance with the financial covenants to be included in every audited consolidated annual
report;

e Toinclude Notes on the alternative market within 6 months after the Issue Date.

For the needs of this section, quarterly and annual reports (together with proof of compliance with financial
covenants) should be published on Issuer’s website and, after Notes are listed on First North operated by Nasdaq
Riga, via Nasdaq Riga information system.

For the needs of this section, the term “Related Persons” shall mean any natural or legal person, which is (a) a
shareholder or (b) a member of the board or council, or (c) a spouse of any persons referred to in (a) — (c) in
relation to the Issuer.

5.6. Procedure for applying for the waiver

The Issuer has the right to ask for the consent (waiver) of Noteholders to amend the conditions included in the
Terms of the Issue (apply for the waiver).

The amendment of the Terms of the Issue may include the amendment of any conditions, which is not restricted
by such characteristics of Notes as currency, Coupon rate, Coupon calculation method, Coupon and Nominal
payments, inclusion of Note for trade in other regulated or alternative markets, repayment deadline of Notes,
and other conditions, unless they contradict regulatory enactments in force in the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer can apply for the waiver itself or through the intermediary of an authorized person (“Agent”). To apply
for the waiver, the Issuer or Issuer’s Agent shall notify Noteholders with intermediation of Nasdaq CSD, or, if Notes
are included in the Nasdaq Riga, via Nasdag Riga information system, specifying at the least the following
information:

e adescription of the changes applied for;

e ajustification of the necessity of the changes applied for;

e the date when the list of Noteholders eligible to grant the waiver (vote) will be fixed;
e the term within which a Noteholder can support or reject the offered waiver;

e instructions concerning notification about the support or rejection of the waiver and the procedure for
filling in the voting questionnaire;

e notification that a Noteholder willing to grant the waiver offered by the Issuer shall notify the Issuer and
Issuer’s Agent within the term specified in the application, which is certified by a postal seal, signature
on receipt or notification (letter or email) from Noteholder’s Custodian. If the Noteholder does not notify
the Issuer or Issuer’s Agent about the approval to grant waiver within the term specified in the
application, a Noteholder shall be deemed as not having granted the waiver;

e contact details of the Issuer and/ or the Issuer’s Agent to be used for notifications (telephone number
forinquiries, email or address for sending filled in and signed questionnaires, list of representative offices
and/ or branches of the Issuer and/ or Issuer’s Agent where Noteholders can submit the questionnaires
in person);

e other information including a fee to Noteholders for approving the waiver needed by Noteholders for
deciding upon granting the consent or refusal to grant the waiver to the Issuer.

The list of Noteholders shall be inquired from the Nasdaqg CSD as of the date falling to the fifth Business Day after
the waiver with intermediation of Nasdag CSD was sent to Nasdag CSD participants, who hold the Notes in
financial securities’ custody accounts or are Noteholders, or after the announcement of the waiver has been
published via Nasdaq Riga information system, if Notes are included in the regulated or alternative market.

The term allowed to Noteholders for deciding upon refusal to grant the waiver to the Issuer may not be shorter
than 14 (fourteen) calendar days after the waiver with intermediation of Nasdag CSD was sent to Nasdag CSD
participants, who hold the Notes in financial securities’ custody accounts or are Noteholders, or after the
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announcement of the waiver has been published via Nasdaq Riga information system, if Notes are included in the
regulated or alternative market.

Noteholders shall submit signed questionnaires with their decision to the Issuer or Issuer’s Agent by a deadline
set in the application of the waiver. The waiver is deemed to be granted, if Noteholders owning at least 2/3 (two
thirds) of the outstanding Notes issue (excluding Notes owned by the Issuer and / or its affiliated persons
(subsidiaries, shareholders, management or employees) from the total outstanding amount of Notes issue) have
voted for granting the waiver. The Notes owned by the Issuer and / or its affiliated persons (subsidiaries,
shareholders, management or employees) are not eligible to participate in the voting.

The Issuer or Issuer’s Agent shall sum up the received votes and notify Noteholders of the results of the voting
within one Business Day after the deadline for submitting the questionnaires by sending relevant notification with
intermediation of Nasdag CSD to Nasdaqg CSD participants, who hold the Notes in financial securities’” custody
accounts or are Noteholders, or by publishing relevant announcement via Nasdaq Riga information system, if
Notes are included in the regulated or alternative market.

If the accepted changes refer to specifications of the Notes and/ or Coupon calculation method, as well as
procedure of Coupon payments and/ or repayment of the Nominal, the Issuer shall inform Nasdag CSD on the
mentioned changes according to the regulation determined in the Nasdaqg CSD rules.

If the Issuer offers Noteholders a fee for approving the waiver and the waiver is granted, the Issuer transfers the
fee amount to the account stated by a Noteholder in the questionnaire not later than ten Business Days after the
waiver comes into force.
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6.1. Notice

This summary is of general nature and should not be considered a legal or tax advice. This section does not contain
full and complete information on all the taxes that relate to investment in the Notes. Tax rates and conditions for
paying taxes may change during the life of the Notes. Prospective Noteholders should consult with their own tax
advisors with respect to their particular circumstances and the effects of the Latvian or foreign tax laws to which
they may be subject to.

6.2. Definition of residents and non-residents

An individual is considered resident of Latvia for tax purposes if his or her permanent place of residence is Latvia;
or he or she stays in Latvia for more than 183 days within any 12-month period; or he or she is a citizen of Latvia
and is employed abroad by the government of Latvia. If an individual does not meet any of the above-mentioned
criteria, he or she is considered a non-resident for tax purposes.

Any legal entity is considered resident of Latvia for tax purposes if it is or should be established and registered in
Latvia according to the Latvian legislation. Other legal entities are considered non-residents for tax purposes.

Table 1 — Tax consequences in Latvia regarding the income derived from Notes that are issued by a legal entity
registered in Latvia (not being a credit institution) effective as of 1 January 2019:

Notes that are not in the Public
Leg?rl]é;?;gs of Circulation. . Conditions
beneficiary Interest tax | Capital gains
rate tax rate
20% tax from the interest (coupon) income is withheld and
transferred to the State budget by an Issuer of Notes, if it is
registered in Latvia.
Individual 1 Capital gains from a sale of Notes are considered equivalent to
resident of 20% 20%1 an interest income and taxed at 20% rate in Latvia. Self-
Latvia assessment and payment of a tax on capital gains [i.e. profits] in
Latvia is performed by a beneficiary of capital gains — a resident
individual filing the Annual Income Statement.
Interest (coupon) income and a capital gain from the Notes not
being in the Public Circulation constitute a part of the beneficiary
deferred: deferred: |~ Latvian company’s overall income.
20/80of the | 20/80 ofthe | The Corporate Income Tax obligation is deferred to the moment
Company beneficiary’s | beneficiary's | - ¢ profit distribution (dividends, interim dividends) or deemed
. net profit net profit ’
resident of distributed distributed | profit distribution (deemed dividends, non-business expenditure,
Latvia (equals to 20%| (equals to 20% bad debts provisions/write-off, loans to the related persons,
ofthegross | ofthegross | transfer pricing adjustments, liquidation quota) of the beneficiary
profit) profit) - Latvian company. The tax is assessed and paid based on the
Corporate Income Tax Return filed for a taxation period (a month
or year).
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Individual
non-resident

20% "

20% >*

20% tax from the interest (coupon) income is withheld and
transferred to the State budget by an Issuer of Notes, if it is
registered in Latvia.

2 _ The reduced 10%, 7%, 5%, 2.5% or 0% tax rate on interest
(coupon) income can be applicable in Latvia only, if provisions of
the Double Tax Treaty concluded between Latvia and other
relevant country stipulate it.

3 _ A capital gain from the Notes is considered equivalent to an
interest income and taxed at 20% rate. The purchaser of the
Notes, if it is registered in Latvia, performs calculation and
withholding of a tax on capital gain [i.e. a profit]. If no profit is
derived from a sale transaction, the 20% tax is not withheld/paid.
The Double Tax Treaty provisions may stipulate a tax exemption
in Latvia for a capital gain derived by a non-resident individual.

4 - A non-resident individual being a beneficiary of interest
(coupon) income or a capital gain could be obliged to assess and
pay tax in its country of residence at the tax rate specified in the
relevant country, which may or may not be higher than the one
applicable in Latvia.

Company non-
resident

56
exempt

6
exempt

Interest (coupon) income and a capital gain derived by a non-
resident company (except a company from one of the “black
listed countries or territories”) are tax exempt in Latvia.

5 - An issuer of Notes withholds 20% tax from interest (coupon)
payments, if they are made to a company non-resident registered
in one of the low tax or non-tax countries or territories specified
by the Cabinet Regulations of Latvia (so called “the black listed
countries and territories”).

& - A non-resident company being a beneficiary of interest
(coupon) income or a capital gain could be obliged to assess and
pay tax in its country of residence at the tax rate specified in the
relevant country, which may or may not be higher than the one
applicable in Latvia.

Source: Legal acts of the Republic of Latvia
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7. Terms of the Offering

7.1. Subscription to the Notes

7.1.1.  Subscription period

The initial offering shall commence on 8 August 2019 and shall end on 8 September 2019 at 17:00.
7.1.2.  Subscription terms

Subscription orders to the Notes can be submitted to the Arranger every Business day during normal working
hours. More detailed information on the submission of the subscription orders is available by phone +371
67031222.

Subscription order can also be submitted to other Custodians, which in turn shall submit orders to the Arranger.
Business relations between Potential Noteholders and Custodians are regulated by contracts between them and
by the applicable legal acts.

The total Nominal value of subscribed Notes should be stated in the order. Potential Noteholders have the right
to submit several subscription orders during the offering. Subscription orders to the Notes are irrevocable. The
Arranger will register all submitted subscription orders of its clients according to legal requirements and internal
procedures.

The minimal subscription size is EUR 1,000 (one thousand euro) for a qualified investor and EUR 100,000 (one
hundred thousand euro) for other Potential Noteholders. The maximum subscription size is EUR 3,790,000 (three
million seven hundred ninety thousand euro). Subscription size should adhere Settlement Unit Multiple.

7.1.3. Notes price

Notes purchase price can be equal to 100% (one hundred per cent) of the Nominal value or purchase price could
be lower or higher than Nominal value, meaning that bonds can be sold with discount or premium, plus accrued
interest as per Section 4.2.11 “Accrued interest calculation”.

All subscription orders that were aggregated during the subscription period with the First Settlement Date as of
30 August 2019 will be delivered without accrued interest.

7.1.4. Reduction of the Notes issue size

At any time the Issuer may decide to discontinue offering of the Notes. The total issue size is equal to the actual
issue size of the Notes before such decision.

7.15. Allocation of the Notes to investors

The Notes are allocated to investors in the amount not larger than the amount specified in the subscription form
and not less than the minimum size as described in the Section 7.1.2. “Subscription terms”.

The Arranger at its sole discretion has a right to refuse to allocate all or part of the subscribed Notes to any
Potential Noteholder.

7.2. Settlement and delivery of the Notes

The First Settlement Date of Notes is 30 August 2019. All subscription orders that were aggregated during the
subscription period with settlement date is 30 August 2019 will be delivered without accrued interest.

The settlement date for the Notes can be any Business Day which is not earlier than the second Business Day and
not later than the 20th Business Day after subscription order is dully submitted to the Arranger.

Settlement of the Notes will be executed through the Nasdaqg CSD as DVP (delivery versus payment) transactions
according to the applicable Nasdaqg CSD rules and Operating Manual. The Custodians execute payments for the
Notes based on the results of the subscription provided by the Arranger. The Notes will be transferred to Potential
Noteholders’ financial instrument accounts on the settlement date.

Settlement for the Notes can be executed according to other procedure, which is agreed to by the Arranger and
Potential Noteholder.
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7.3. Pre-emptive rights

None of Potential Noteholders has the rights of pre-emption in respect to acquisition of the Notes in the initial
placement.

7.4. Transaction

Funds raised through initial subscription of Notes will be transferred to bank account of Issuer in AS BlueOrange
Bank. Issuer authorize BlueOrange Bank to transfer funds from lIssuer’s bank account to escrow account in
BlueOrange Bank for the re-financing of current liabilities in line with the escrow account agreement No. DK-
068109-01, signed on 23 August 2019 by AS BlueOrange Bank, Luminor Bank AS and Sakret Group. If terms of the
escrow account agreement will not be fulfilled by any of the parties and terms of escrow account will not be met,
meaning that the re-financing transaction will not occur, the Issuer authorizes AS BlueOrange Bank to use funds
raised from Notes Issue and held in escrow account, in order to purchase issued Notes from the Noteholders at
the secondary market at the issue price.
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8. Including of the Notes on the market and trading regulations

The Issuer plans to request the admission to trading of the Notes on First North, which is alternative market
operated by Nasdaq Riga, and submit Terms of the Issue and company description with Nasdaq Riga.

The Issuer has not signed any agreement with any person for Notes liquidity maintenance on the secondary
market.
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9. Additional Information

9.1. Advisors involved in the Issue

The Issuer has concluded an agreement with the Arranger to organize the Notes Issue, to communicate with the
Nasdag CSD and Nasdaq Riga, market it to Potential Noteholders and conduct settlement during the subscription
period. The Arranger may provide other services to the Issuer in the future and receive remuneration for it. The
Arranger may invest its own funds in the Notes.

The Issuer has signed the Collateral Agent Agreement with Collateral Agent, which holds the Collateral for the
benefit of the Noteholders and is authorized to dispose the Collateral in the interests of all the Noteholders in
accordance with the present Terms of the Issue and the Collateral Agent Agreement.

9.2. The external audit of the information included in the securities description

The auditors have not verified the information included in the securities description.

9.3. Statements or reports included in the securities description

The securities description does not contain any expert statements or reports.

9.4. Credit ratings

There is no credit rating assigned to the Issuer or to the Notes issue.
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10. The Issuer

10.1.  General Information on the Issuer

Country of location: Republic of Latvia.

Legal form: joint-stock company, legal status — legal person.

Date and place of registration: in the Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia on 30 September 2009
Registration number: 40103251030

Legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121

The company’s country of foundation is the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer carries out its activities in accordance with the legal acts of the Republic of Latvia.

The main regulatory enactments which regulate Issuer’s activities are

e The Commercial Law of the Republic of Latvia;
e Labour Code;
e  Construction Law.

10.2.  Adescription of the Issuer’s position within the group

Issuer is a holding company and it controls operational companies of the Sakret Holdings group. Since Issuer is a
holding company, the insolvency of Issuer is directly dependent on operational subsidiaries and their financial

results.

10.3.  Auditor

The Issuer’s financial auditor of the last audited annual report is SIA “Deloitte Audits Latvia” (registration number:

40003606960, legal address: Grédu iela 4a, Riga, Latvia, LV-1019).
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11. Business of the Issuer

11.1.  Brief summary

Founded in 2003, Sakret Group is leading producer of dry mixes and ready-made liquid mixes for construction,
such as masonry cement, plastering, and concrete in Baltics. Group consists of three dry-mixes factories in all
three Baltic states, each with over 100,000 tonnes production capacity per year and liquid ready-made mixes
factory in Latvia. Company employs more than 125 people.

Additional information about the business of Sakret Group is available in the Appendix 1.
11.2.  Management of the Issuer

e  Maris Kelpis (Founder, Chairman of the Management Board)

Maris is the founder of Sakret Group. He has held a controlling stake in Sakret Group since the founding and still
follows the operations on a daily basis.

e Andris Vanags (Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Andris has spent long years working for construction material companies producing cement, concrete and other
products. Prior experience include client service manager at AS Brocéni (currently Cemex) and project manager
at AS Brocéenu Siferis.

Andris holds a BSc in chemical technology,MSc in silicate and high-temperature materials chemistry and
technology from Riga Technical University and PhD in business management.

He acted as a Special Advisor to the former Prime Minister of Latvia, Maris Kucinskis, and is a Member of the
Counsellors Convention of RTU and Member of the Council of Latvian Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

e Juris Grinvalds (Chief Commercial Officer, Member of the Management Board)

From 1996 to 2003, worked in the Danish paint company SKALFLEX. Joined Sakret in early beginning of 2003 as
Sales Director. Lead the construction project of the largest dry mixing plant in the Baltic states. Plant in Kédainiai
in Lithuania was opened in 2008. Currently coordinates Sakret sales in the Baltics and Scandinavian countries, as
well as is the Director of Sakret Plus.

Juris graduated from the Faculty of Civil Engineering of Latvia University of Agriculture. Currently serves as Board
Member of Association of Building Materials Manufacturers.

e Andis Ziedonis (Chief Financial Officer, Member of the Management Board)

Andis has more than 20 year experience as CFO. He joined Sakret in 2006 after 8 years in one of the largest press
publishing house in the Baltics, where he started as an Economist and was promoted to Chief Economist, CFO and
member of the board. He also has experience in banking sector.

Andis holds a combined BSc in Engineering and Economics from Riga Technical University.
11.3.  Supervisory Board of the Issuer
The Supervisory Board of Issuer consists of three members:

e  Andris Vanags, chairman
e Valérija Liege,
e Artis Grinbergs
11.4.  Shareholders of the Issuer

The only shareholder of AS “SAKRET HOLDINGS” is a company SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS”, with registration
number: 42103085387 and legal address: “Ritvari”, Stopinu nov., Rumbula, Latvia, LV-2121.

Issuer’s share capital is EUR 35,000 which consists of 25,000 ordinary shares, each of them with a nominal value
of EUR 1.40. SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” holds all 25,000 shares of the Issuer.

SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” share capital is EUR 8,000 which consists of 8,000 ordinary shares, each of them
with a nominal value of EUR 1.00.
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At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the current structure of SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS”
shareholders is as follows:

Table 2 — SIA “PARVALDIBAS SISTEMAS” shareholders structure

Name, surname/ Legal name Number of shares % of the total number
Maris Kelpis (120561-10558) 6,824 85.300%
llgvars Belinskis (061060-10547) 810 10.125%
Private individuals 366 4.575%
Total: 8,000 100%

The beneficiary of the Issuer, controlling the Issuer, is chairman of the board, Maris Kelpis.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no information at its disposal regarding any
agreements, the fulfilment of which might cause changes in the Issuer’s control.

11.5.  Legal proceedings and arbitrage

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer are not involved in any government interventions,
lawsuits or arbitrage processes, which may significantly affect or have significantly affected the financial situation
or profitability of the Issuer.

11.6.  Substantial changes in financial situation of the Issuer

As of the publication of the last financial statement, the financial situation or performance of the Issuer has not
worsened.

Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to
refinance current liabilities from credit institutions. After the refinancing, due to the discount granted by current
credit institution, the consolidated equity of the Sakret Group will increase. Together with the shareholders
contribution in amount of EUR 1m, the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to
participate in several grant and energy-efficiency increase programs and positively affecting the financial standing
and solvency of the Issuer.

The Issuer is unaware of any other factors, claims, obligations, or events which would negatively affect the
financial situation or performance of the Issuer in future.

11.7. Important agreements

The Issuer has no knowledge of any important agreements that could have been concluded between the Issuer
and any related company and that could affect the Issuer’s capability to fulfil its liabilities due to investors
regarding the securities to be issued.

11.8.  Significant recent and known trends

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no information at its disposal regarding any recent
tendencies that have negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material production
industry.

At the moment of signing the Terms of the Issue, the Issuer has no information at its disposal regarding any
identified tendencies that have negatively affected the Issuer or the activity of the construction material
production industry.

11.9.  Documents available to the public

After the Notes will be included in First North operated by Nasdaq Riga, Terms of the Issue and company
description will be available to the public and on Issuer’s website within 6 months after the Issue Date.
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12. Financial information

The last audited equity of the Issuer is negative EUR (8,345,213).
Issuer does not provide pro forma financial information.
The profit/loss forecast has not been carried out.

Information, which is disclosed in this section of the Terms of the Issue, is taken from the Issuer’s audited and
unaudited financial reports that are approved by the Issuer’'s management. The annual reports are prepared
according to the Latvian accounting standards.

As per unaudited data for 2018, all loan liabilities from credit institutions are classified as short-term due to
refinancing planned in September 2019 with funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior financing from
AS BlueOrange Bank.

12.1.  Objections in the financial information of the audit report
The audit report for financial statements for 2016 contained no objections.

The audit report for financial statements for 2017 one objection, regarding significant uncertainty about the
company's ability to continue as a going concern. Auditor notes, that Sakret Group ended 2017 year with net loss
of EUR 220,632, consolidated equity was negative EUR 8,345,213 and its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by EUR 2,629,360. Thus, auditor states, that the continued operation of the Sakret Group is dependent on
its ability to meet its credit obligations on time, as well as to meet all financial ratios and secure the long-term
financing from the credit institutions.

Issuer plans to use funds raised from Notes Issue, together with senior financing from AS BlueOrange Bank, to
refinance current liabilities from credit institutions. Due to the discount granted by current credit institution, the
consolidated equity of the Sakret group will increase. Together with the shareholders contribution in amount of
EUR 1m, the consolidated equity will become positive, allowing Sakret Group to participate in several grant and
energy-efficiency increase programs and positively affecting the financial standing and solvency of the Issuer.

12.2. Income Statement

Table 3 —Issuer’s consolidated income statements, 2015-2018, EUR

2018
2015 2016 2017 (unaudited)

Revenue 19 146 596 17 648 223 19298 618 21265701
Cost of goods sold 14414 231 13220742 14 649 323 15872 424
Gross profit 4732 365 4427 481 4 649 295 5393277
Cost of sales 2 582 205 2544522 2764948 2799 993
Administration costs 1030176 982 097 1048 794 1470121
Other operating income 49 005 139523 21767 48 116
Other operating expenses 116 438 56 821 87570 103170
Interest income 1302 1284 1552 1248
Interest expense 861 803 878 922 976 775 652772
Profit before tax 192 050 105 926 (205 473) 416 585
Income tax 70369 79 557 15159 49 230
Deferred tax 2734 - - -
Net profit for the reporting year 118 947 26 369 (220 632) 367 355
12.3.  Balance sheet
Table 4 — Issuer’s consolidated balance sheet at the end of period 2015-2018, EUR

31.12.2018

31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 (unaudited)

Non-current assets:
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Intangible assets 177 688 317129 411872 446 236
TOTAL: 177 688 317 129 411872 446 236
Property, plant and equipment:
Plant and property 9717 694 9229525 8780792 8391711
Machinery 3300286 2925925 2537216 2126376
Other fixed assets 75431 71068 99 582 109 805
Prepayments for fixed assets 8 000 4296 6529 -
TOTAL: 13101411 12230814 11424119 10627892
Non-current financial assets:
Other long-term debtors 20 880 13926 13918 34113
Other financial assets 28 28 - -
TOTAL: 20908 13954 13918 34113
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 13300007 12561897 11849909 11108241
Current assets:
Inventory:
Raw materials 1406227 1565903 1367758 1380966
Ready-made products 1450 840 942 702 896 466 899 109
Prepayments for inventory 12 580 6319 27 670 7 006
TOTAL: 2869647 2514924 2291 894 2287081
Accounts receivable:
Receivables from clients and suppliers 1940896 1953264 2515993 2717539
Other receivables 128 121 159 127 142 318 149 858
Next period expenses 27 388 33776 36392 47 356
Short-term loans to shareholders 35572 35572 35572 35572
TOTAL: 2131977 2181739 2730275 2950 325
Cash and cash equivalents: 489 172 397 591 306 063 342 277
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS: 5490796 5094 254 5328 232 5579 683
TOTAL ASSETS: 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924
Owners’ Equity:
Fixed capital 35000 35000 35000 35000
Denomination reserve 572 572 572 572
Reorganisation reserve (8491 750) (8491750) (8491750) (8491 750)
Currency exchange rate revaluation reserve 24 899 24 899 24 899 24 899
Retained earnings 49 012 143 870 148 327 (90 811)
Profit for the year 89 244 4 457 (239 138) 349 876
TOTAL: (8293023) (8282952) (8522090) (8172214)
Owners' Equity attributable to the members of the
parent company:
Minority shareholder participation 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL: 136 459 158 371 176 877 194 356
TOTAL EQUITY: (8156564) (8124581) (8345213) (7977858)
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Debt from credit institutions 19140971 17341139 16641137 -
Other liabilities 167 093 167 093 167 093 167 093
Liabilities of related parties 896 532 767 932 757 532 644 132
Financial leasing 33085 - - -
Deferred tax asset 5713 - - -
TOTAL: 20243394 18276164 17565762 811225

Short-term liabilities:
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Debt from credit institutions 2547579 2799999 1700000 17641137
Other liabilities 500 145 654 835 1170582 1384 137
Financial leasing 53876 37 545 37 545 -
Pre-payments from buyers 11 851 222099 118 865 38127
Debts to suppliers and contractors 1550063 1957 165 3005926 2976 635
Liabilities of related parties 804 740 624 844 421535 469 324
Taxes and social security payments 360 554 520983 325638 191 555
Other creditors 136 658 98 845 139133 130153
Accrued liabilities 689 615 559 250 1009 365 994 486
Unpaid dividends for minority shareholders 48 892 29003 29003 29003
6703973 7504568 7957592 23854557
TOTAL LIABILITIES: 26947367 25780732 25523354 24665782
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18790803 17656151 17178141 16687924
12.4.  Statement of cash flows
Table 5 — Issuer’s consolidated statement of cash flow for 2015-2018, EUR
2015 2018
2016 2017 (unaudited)
Cash flow from operations
Profit before tax 192 050 105 926 (205 473) 416 585
Corrections:
Depreciation and amortisation 1060651 1077005 1027 755 902 426
Interest income 1302 1284 1552 1248
Interest expense 861 803 878922 976 775 652772
Income from disposal of assets 42 539 3795 10925 16521
Profit before change in working capital 2 070 663 2056 774 1786 580 1954014
Net change in working capital 752 641 542 770 717 837 (600 208)
Cash from operations 2823304 2599 544 2504 417 1353 806
Income tax paid 20730 40950 71271 20785
Net cash from operations 2802574 2558 594 2433 146 1333021
Cash flow from investments
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 208 403 309 092 309 013 135148
Interest received 56 - - -
Net cash from investments (208 347) (309 092) (309 013) (135 148)
Cash flow from financing operations
Gain from sale of assets 92422 4567 20 369 14 521
(Paid)/ received loans, net (2172075) (1392722) (1284254) (486 445)
Interest paid 866 356 903 512 951776 652 190
Expense for buying rented assets 48 814 49 416 - 37 545
Net cash from financing operations (2994 823) (2341083) (2215661) (1161659)
Change in cash (400 596) (91 581) (91 528) 36214
Cash at the beginning of the year 889 768 489 172 397591 306 063
Cash at the end of the year 489172 397 591 306 063 342 277
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